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B ZEEN#H 4% Independent Auditor’s Report
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Mazars CPA LIMITED

HHIE @ ot v o 25 7 A LA
42nd Floor, Central Plaza,
18 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

T v T 0 1 89 T BRI S 40
To the members of

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tingyi
“Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) set out on pages 52 to 151,

(Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the

which comprise the consolidated and Company’s statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2009, and the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting

estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
content of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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BIUZEEIHRE Independent Auditor’s Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Group'’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 22 March 2010

Chan Chi Ming Andy
Practising Certificate number: P05132
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LE U EFER Consolidated Income Statement

HIE—ZTEZNWF+_A=1+—HEFE VYear ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
K &t FET FET
Note Us$‘000 Us$'000

EEEEW R Turnover and revenue 6 5,081,113 4,272,053
4 & B AR Cost of sales (3.321,764) (2,897,449)
E£ 7 Gross profit 1,759,349 1,374,604
H i FlA Other net income 8 79,913 82,427
DA Distribution costs (1,032,759) (826,651)
1T E R Administrative expenses (96,651) (86,398)
Hig & & A Other operating expenses (81,650) (68,405)
Rk = Finance costs 9 (12,644) (31,168)
JE(RE & N A E4E Share of results of associates 9,550 7,812
BR B A& R Profit before taxation 9 625,108 452,221
i IA Taxation 11 (124,613) (90,185)
7R B A Profit for the year 500,495 362,036
FREMLER Attributable to:

KA AR Owners of the Company 383,207 260,404

DEERRE Non-controlling interests 117,288 101,632
7 B A Profit for the year 500,495 362,036
5 B% % F Earnings per share 14

HR Basic US6.86 cents US4.66 cents

B Diluted US6.85 cents US4.66 cents
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SEEHEKER

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HIE—TTZNF+-_A=1+—HILFE Year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
Us$’000 Us$'000
76 B A Profit for the year 500,495 362,036
Hth 2 W = Other comprehensive income
ERETERRERA Net gains recognised directly
RN 2z % W am in equity
X =5 Exchange translation difference 1,731 90,277
BeRrXEEL2ERKE Total comprehensive income
for the year (net of tax) 502,226 452,313
EiE2mEkEs Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
NN S Owners of the Company 384,941 331,114
D E R AR R Non-controlling interests 117,285 121,199
502,226 452,313
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e MR R R

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZZETAF+=_A=+—H At 31 December 2009

Kt i 2009 2008
Note US$’000 Us$’000
BE ASSETS
kRBEE Non-current assets
L - DN Property, plant and equipment 15 2,216,638 1,974,445
EEE Intangible assets 16 6,955 9,733
B 28 N Bl RE 2 Interests in associates 18 61,892 68,095
LA 2905 B Prepaid lease payments 19 88,803 81,308
AEHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 20 3,408 3,760
EEFR IR E E Deferred tax assets 31 5,379 5,379
2,383,075 2,142,720
REEE Current assets
BEARBEIKEEERR Financial assets at fair value
EEMNSREE through profit or loss 21 4,026 550
5B Inventories 22 212,923 194,904
& L BR 3R Trade receivables 23 115,591 129,944
TEAT 5RIE R E fth fE U SRR Prepayments and other receivables 171,889 108,434
AR IT 17 3K Pledged bank deposits 24 9,358 4,889
RITHEHR LIRS Bank balances and cash 25 510,831 380,075
1,024,618 818,796
REE Total assets 3,407,693 2,961,516
BREZRERE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
B R #EE Capital and reserves
BATIRA Issued capital 26 27,934 27,934
{1 Reserves 27 1,434,710 1,179,269
AATRREMLER Total capital and reserves
attributable to owners of
the Company 1,462,644 1,207,203
DERRER Non-controlling interests 446,420 331,435
IRER A Total equity 1,909,064 1,538,638
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R4 B & AR 3R &R Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RZZEThAhF+=_A=+—H At31 December 2009

it &t 2009 2008
Note Us$°000 Us$'000
kRBEME Non-current liabilities
FHBERBE Long-term interest-bearing
borrowings 29 116,983 135,852
H th IE 7 B B A IR Other non-current payables 1,531 2,295
BETIRMEME Employee benefit obligations 30 11,377 9,200
EEHIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 31 60,779 39,848
190,670 187,195
REAE Current liabilities
JE 5 BR K Trade payables 32 622,197 403,925
H At fE S FRIB Other payables 406,210 352,475
EEBE Current portion of
2 BV ER & 1 interest-bearing borrowings 29 218,087 431,229
B FIENFKIE Advance payments from customers 42,497 36,483
IR Taxation 18,968 11,571
1,307,959 1,235,683
B s Total liabilities 1,498,629 1,422,878
BREZRER Total equity and liabilities 3,407,693 2,961,516
ERBAEE Net current liabilities (283,341) (416,887)
BEERRBAEMS Total assets less current
liabilities 2,099,734 1,725,833

RZE-—ZTF=—A-+t-AKEETEH Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22

RS March 2010
L FE M Wei Ing-Chou # H 2 Takeshi Ida
& % Director & % Director
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Bt #& AR W 3k Statement of Financial Position

7
R-_ZTEZAF+_-_HA=+—H At31 December 2009

Kt i 2009 2008
Note Us$’000 Us$'000
BE ASSETS
kRBEE Non-current assets
Wz B RERE Property, plant and equipment 15 131 222
Y NEIE E Interests in subsidiaries 17 533,251 459,034
B 48 N B RE 2R Interests in associates 18 62,601 67,415
AEHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 20 2,712 3,028
598,695 529,699
REEE Current assets
BEARBEINKRRERZR Financial assets at fair value
BENEREE through profit or loss 21 4,026 24
TS FRIE K E fth fE U SRR Prepayments and other receivables 979 2,833
RTEHRERS Bank balances and cash 6,312 10,845
11,317 13,702
BmEE Total assets 610,012 543,401
BREZRERE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
IR A R {7 Capital and reserves
BEITRA Issued capital 26 27,934 27,934
8 Reserves 27 484,749 412,498
BRRERBRE Total equity 512,683 440,432
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
RHPEEEE Long-term interest-bearing
borrowings 29 65,000 5,500
BETIRMEME Employee benefit obligations 30 8,246 7,323
73,246 12,823
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B #& #k @ &R Statement of Financial Position
RZZEThAhF+=_A=+—H At31 December 2009

Wt it 2009 2008
Note Us$’000 Us$'000
REAE Current liabilities
FE TR K Trade payables 32 2,818 2,728
H At fE S FRIB Other payables 765 8,918
EEBE Current portion of
2 BV ER & 1 interest-bearing borrowings 29 20,500 78,500
24,083 90,146
BmEE Total liabilities 97,329 102,969
BEREZREE Total equity and liabilities 610,012 543,401
BREBARE Net current liabilities (12,766) (76,444)
HWEERRBER Total assets less current liabilities 585,929 453,255

RZE-—ZTF=—A-+t-AKEETEH Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22

R R March 2010
BLFE M Wei Ing-Chou F# H % Takeshi Ida
& % Director & % Director
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AMERREZBER
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HIE-TTZNAF+-_A=1+—HILFE VYear ended 31 December 2009

KDARRELRE
Attributable to Owners of the Company
i3 3L ERERR HERR

(a0 Bl Share- Bd RARER

BARE  Capital  KEEE  Exchange -REE  based RBEA Non-  Capital

Issued  redemption Share translation ~ General  payment  Retained B8 controlling and

apital  reserve  premium  reserve  reseve  reseve profits Total interests  reserves

USS000  US§'000  USS'000  US§'000  USS'000  USS'000  US§'000  USS'000  USS'000  USS'000

RZEENE-H-H At 1 January 2008 27,943 6 3B 93124 13591 — 43819 999718 254034 1,281,695

FRRENE Total comprehensive income - - - M - — 260404 BLAA 12019 45238

ERt-RER Transfer to general reserve - - - - Y - (41,59) - - -

KT\ EEERN Share repurchase in 2008 ) 9 (196) - - = - 9m - (19%)
i EREERG Recognition of equity-ettled

3P share-based payment reserve = — — — = 750 = 750 = 750

BR-ZELERBRA 2007 final dividend paid - - - - - — (0837)  (037)  (43798) (1343%)

ERN-ERLERIIRA 2007 specil diidend paid - - - - - - (97%9)  (59799) - (59799)

RZEENETZR=1-H At 31 December 2008 27,93 45 330492 163834 17755 750 506593 1179269 331435 1,538,638

RZEEhE-H-H At 1 January 2009 27,934 45 33049 163834 17755 750 506593 1,179,269 331435 1,538,638

Ga2E0E Total comprehensive income - - - 1,734 - — 33207 3494 117285 502,206

BRE-RER Transfer to general reserve - - - - 5118 - [5116e) - - -
A EREER Recognition of equity-settled

S ZHE share-based payment reserve - - - - - 2,80 - 280 - 280
HEWBRAMES Realisaion of reserve upon

LAY disposal of a subsidiary - - - (1,600) (8) - - (1,608) - (1,608)

BR-EENERBRA 2008 fina dvidend paid - - - - - - (130172) (130072)  (2300) (132472)

RZZEAETZA=1-A At 31 December 2009 27,934 45 33049 163968 228,709 3030 708466 1434710 446,420 1,909,064
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HEHERERXR Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow

HE_ZTAE+_-_HA=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
B i FET FZET
Note Us$°000 Us$'000
RETH OPERATING ACTIVITIES
KEXBFSHRS Cash generated from operations 33 1,109,552 690,669
EHPBECEMGH The People’s Republic of China
("PRC") Enterprise income tax paid (96,032) (56,246)
BE#F R Interest paid (12,644) (31,168)
RETHMEBRLS TR Net cash from operating activities 1,000,876 603,255
REZED INVESTING ACTIVITIES
B U F B Interest received 15,579 17,307
HNEEE N R RE Increase in investment in an associate — (2,349)
HERARBEIIER Proceeds from disposal of financial

EEERERN assets at fair value through

CREEZFE profit or loss — 17,701
HERBAFZ Proceeds from disposal of interest

Fr 1% in a subsidiary 34 6,258 —
EOES Redemption of debt securities — 4,929
A AR EWA Dividends received from associates 3,059 2,999
BARARBEIERR Purchase of financial assets at

FEREENSRMEE fair value through profit or loss (4,002) =
BAWE - Purchase of property,

22 T 5% plant and equipment (497,875) (507,014)
B AR E Prepaid lease payments (9,698) (15,370)
HEWME - #ER Proceeds from sale of property,

RS plant and equipment 14,386 14,798
REES T A Net cash used in

BEFEHE investing activities (472,293) (466,999)
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4 & ¥ € fi 8 X Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
HE_TTZNAF+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
i i FE T FETT
Note Us$’000 Us$'000

A& FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BT AR A Dividends paid to Owners

IR 2 AR B of the Company (130,172) (150,336)
B DERE Dividends paid to

Z B non-controlling interests (45,071) (1,027)
I E N New borrowings 328,065 913,247
LA &) Repurchase of shares — (1,986)
EEEX Repayment of borrowings (546,722) (732,077)
MmEEE (FTA) i Net cash (used in) from

REFHE financing activities (393,900) 27,821
ReRESEEUN Net increase in cash

R N and cash equivalents 134,683 164,077
FHAzHRER Cash and cash equivalents

BEeZEY at beginning of year 384,964 242,892
EXSE) rFE Effect on exchange rate changes 542 (22,005)
FRZEER Cash and cash equivalents

ReZEY at end of year 25 520,189 384,964
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BR B Y3 Notes to the Financial Statements

—REH

R EEBRERAR ([AAF]]) RE
WEBAR (sl AEEH]) XE2RSE
FERIEEAFEE  RoREGHE
me ARAARSHESIMAIER
EERAIRREREAMERSME
RAFIZERLET - HFZELEMUE
AREXEREERNMAZREE =S
155% o

fR B 3

ARBNIZREBGAMAERMZ
FEUEmEEN ([FEMBREE
A1) SREEBEMEERERN
FEEMBHREER - BAEGER
(IBAAEER) k2 BAEE
EMZ e RAIRER RGN 25
BREMRHE AEREREANEE
BHAERZIAARARES LM
ZERBERE

BRAFENI TS RFEAERNFE]
HRLEFTZBRAMBREELIN - K
RERACZEERRE—_ZTT)\FE
MREZ—HH - AEEMRAZE
R BRUEHNMES -

BE_ZZNF+-_A=1+—HLFE For the year ended 31 December 2009

GENERAL INFORMATION

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the manufacture and sale of instant noodles, beverages and
bakery products. The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The address of its principal place of business is No. 15, The 3rd
Street, Tianjin Economic-Technological Development Area,
Tianjin, PRC.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These financial statements have been prepared on a basis
consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the 2008
financial statements except for the adoption of the new /
revised HKFRS that are effective from the current year as
detailed in note 4 to the financial statements. A summary of
the principal accounting policies adopted by the Group is set
out in note 3 to the financial statements.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

In preparing the financial statements, the directors have
carefully assessed the working capital and financing
requirements of the Group in the foreseeable future, as the
Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
US$283,341,000 (2008: net current liabilities of
US$416,887,000) at the end of the reporting period.

Taking into account the existing banking facilities of the Group
and continuing profitable operations, the directors are satisfied
that the Group has sufficient resources to meet in full its
financial obligations as they fall due in the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
financial statements is historical cost, except for financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, which have been
measured at fair value as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.
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3. FEETHR &) 3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) ZEEE (b) Basis of consolidation
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The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as
at 31 December each year. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as
that of the Company using consistent accounting policies.

All inter-group balance, transactions, income and expenses
and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceased.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or
loss and net assets not held by the Group and are
presented separately in the consolidated income statement
and consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to owners of the Company. Losses
applicable to non-controlling parties in excess of the non-
controlling’s interests in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated
against the interests of the Group except to the extent that
the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make
an additional investment to cover the losses.
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3. FEETHR &) 3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) M%¥- - KERRE (c) Property, plant and equipment
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Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statement during the year in which
they are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in the consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognised.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress, over their
estimated useful lives as set out below from the date on
which they are available for use and after taking into
account their estimated residual values, using the straight-
line method. Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the costs or valuation
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis and
depreciated separately.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Machinery and equipment:
- For instant noodles and beverages
- Others

Electrical appliances and equipment

12 years

5 to 10 years
5 years
Miscellaneous equipment 5 years

Construction in progress

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or
for its own use purposes. Construction in progress is stated
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes
all construction expenditure and other direct costs,
including interest costs, attributable to such projects. Costs
on completed construction works are transferred to the
appropriate asset category. No depreciation is provided in
respect of construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

Intangible assets - Trademarks

The initial cost of acquiring trademarks is capitalised.
Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Trademarks with finite
less accumulated

useful lives are carried at cost

amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is provided on the straight-line basis over

their estimated useful lives.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments are up-front payments to acquire
fixed term interests in lessee-occupied land. The premiums
are stated at cost and are amortised over the period of the
lease on a straight-line basis to the consolidated income
statement.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Group has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
interest in subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment loss.
The carrying amount of the investment is reduced to its
recoverable amount on an individual basis. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividends received and receivable.
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3. FEETHR &) 3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) BEQH (h) Associates
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An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant
influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint
venture.

The Group's interests in associates are accounted for under
the equity method of accounting. The consolidated income
statement includes the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition results of its associates for the year. The
consolidated statement of financial position includes the
Group’s share of the net assets of associates and also
goodwill. The Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses when the Group’s share of losses of the
associate equals or exceeds the carrying amount of its
interest in the associate, which includes any long term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
interests in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interest in the associate, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
interest in associates is stated at cost less impairment loss
determined on individual basis. The results of associates are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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3. FEETHR &) 3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i) e®MITH (i) Financial instruments
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
the Group become a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when the Group'’s
contractual rights to future cash flows from the financial
asset expire or when the Group transfers the financial asset
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset. A financial
liability is derecognised only when the liability is
extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract expires.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. They are carried at fair value, with any
resultant gain and loss recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including trade and other receivables
are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market and are not held for trading. They are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, except
where balances are interest-free loans and without any
fixed repayment term or the effect of discounting would be
insignificant. In such case, the receivables are stated at cost
less impairment loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition, over
the period to maturity. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition, impairment or through the amortisation
process are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
financial assets that are either designated at this category
or not classified in any of the other categories of financial
assets. They are measured at fair value with changes in
value recognised as other comprehensive income and
separate component of equity until the assets are sold,
collected or otherwise disposed of, or until the assets are
determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss previously reported in equity is transferred to
the consolidated income statement. Available-for-sale
financial assets that do not have a quoted market price in
an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are stated at cost less impairment loss.
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3. FEETHR &) 3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i) e®MIHE (&) (i) Financial instruments (Continued)
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Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether there is objective evidence that financial assets,
other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are
impaired. The impairment loss of financial assets carried at
amortised cost is measured as the difference between the
assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flow discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The impairment loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement. Such impairment loss is
reversed in subsequent periods through profit or loss when
an increase in the financial asset’s recoverable amount can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had determined the impairment not been
recognised.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an
amount comprising the difference between its acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any previously recognised
impairment loss, is transferred from equity to profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of
available-for-sale equity instrument are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in fair value
of available-for-sale equity instrument after recognition of
impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. Reversal of impairment loss of available-for-sale
debt instruments are reversed through profit or loss, if the
increase in fair value of the instrument can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in profit or loss.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

1)

(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, amounts due to associates, interest-bearing
borrowings and other non-current payables. All financial
liabilities are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method, unless the effect of discounting
would be insignificant, in which case they are stated at
cost.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, net of bank overdraft, if any.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably.

Sale of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and rewards
of ownership, which generally coincides with the time
when the goods are delivered and title has been passed.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(I) Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
("functional currency”). The Company’s functional currency
is United States Dollars (“US$”) and majority of its
subsidiaries have Chinese Renminbi (“RMB"”) as their
functional currency. The consolidated financial statements
are presented in US$, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

On consolidation, the results and financial position of all
the Group entities that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the end of the reporting period;

(b) income and expenses for each consolidated income
statement are translated at average exchange rates ;

(c) all resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s
net investment in a foreign operation are recognised as
a separate component of equity. On disposal of a
foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences deferred in the separate
component of equity relating to that foreign operation
is recognised in the consolidated income statement
when the gain or loss on disposal is recognised.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Inventories

(n)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase
and, where applicable, costs of conversion and other costs
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition, is calculated using the
weighted average cost method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to determine
whether the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment, prepaid lease payments, and intangible assets
have suffered an impairment loss or impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may be reduced.
The Company reviews its interests in subsidiaries for any
indication of impairment loss or impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may be reduced. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated, based on the higher of its fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the smallest group of
assets that generates cash flows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised as an expense immediately.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversal of impairment losses is
recognised as income immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the respective borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Rentals payable under operating
leases are recognised as an expense on the straight-line
basis over the lease term. Lease incentives received are
recognised in the income statement as an integral part of
the net consideration agreed for the use of the leased
asset. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Government grants

(r)

Government grants represent incentive grants from the
relevant PRC authorities in respect of the running of
business by the Group in certain development zones and to
encourage the furtherance of such business.

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grants will be
received and all attached conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income over the years necessary to match the grant on a
systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to
compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair
value is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to the consolidated income statement over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments.

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as expenses in the
consolidated income statement as incurred and are reduced
by contributions forfeited by those employees who leave
the scheme prior the contributions are vested fully in those
employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r) Employee benefits (Continued)

Defined benefit plans

The defined benefit plans are generally funded by
payments from employees and the Group, taking into
account of the recommendations of the independent
qualified actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
The Group’s obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is
calculated separately for each plan by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and prior periods,
which is discounted to the present value and reduced by
the fair value of any plan assets.

The amount recognised in the statement of financial
position represents the present value of the defined benefit
obligation as adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains and
losses and unrecognised past service cost, and reduced by
the fair value of plan assets. Any asset resulting from this
calculation is limited to the net total of any cumulative
unrecognised net actuarial losses and past service costs,
plus the present value of any future refunds from the plan
or reductions in future contributions to the plan. If there is
no change or a decrease in the present value of the
economic benefits, the entire net actuarial gains or losses
with the past service cost of the current period is
recognised immediately.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions, which
exceed 10% of the greater of the present value of the
Group's defined benefit obligations and the fair value of
plan assets are amortised over the expected average
remaining working lives of the participating employees.
Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent
that the benefits are already vested and otherwise is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the average period
until the benefits become vested.
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(s) URBAZNERZRS (s) Share-based payment transactions
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Share options granted to employees

The Group’'s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost of such
transactions with employees is measured by reference to
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a share-based payment reserve within equity.
The fair value is determined using the binomial model,
taking into account the terms and conditions of the
transactions, other than conditions linked to the price of
shares of the Company (“market conditions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
year(s) in which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the relevant employees
become fully entitled to the award (“vesting date”). During
the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest ultimately is reviewed. Any adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged / credited to profit or loss for the year of the
review, with a corresponding adjustment to the reserve
within equity.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t) Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, any
deferred tax arises from initial recognition of goodwill; or
other asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss is
not recognised.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, tax losses and credits can
be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investment in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Related parties

(v)

A party is related to the Group if

(a)

directly, or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, the party controls, is controlled by, or is
under common control with, the Group; or has an
interest in the Group that gives it significant influence

over the Group; or has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate of the Group;

the party is a joint venture in which the Group is a
venturer;

the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (d) or

(e); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of the Group, or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent

with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating

decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is

responsible for allocating
performance of the operating segments,

resources and assessing
has been

identified as the steering committee that makes strategic

decisions.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Future changes in HKFRS

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued the following new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretations that have been
issued but not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to
HKFRSs 2008 - amendments
to HKFRS 5!

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 20092

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements'

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Classification of Rights Issues?

HKAS 39 (Amendments) Eligible Hedged Items’

HKFRS 1 (Amendments)  Additional Exemptions for

First-time Adopters*

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)  Group Cash-settled
Share-based
Payment Transactions*

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations'’

HK(IFRIC) - Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash
Assets to Owners'
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Future changes in HKFRS (Continued)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2009 and 1 January 2010, as appropriate
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

February 2010

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2010

The directors of the Company anticipate that the

application of these amendments, revised standards and

new interpretations will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements.
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4. ADOPTION OF NEW / REVISED HKFRS

Amendments to HKFRS 7: Financial Instruments -
Disclosures

Amendments to HKFRS 7 require additional disclosures about
fair value measurement and liquidity risk. The additional
disclosures of fair value measurements by level of a fair value
measurement hierarchy are presented in Note 37 Fair value (a),
and the liquidity risk disclosures are not significantly impacted
by the amendments. The Group has taken advantage of the
transitional provisions set out in the amendments, under which
comparative information for the newly required disclosures
about the fair value measurements of financial instruments are
not provided in the financial statements.

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 8, replacing HKAS 14: Segment Reporting, requires a
“management approach” under which segment information is
presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting
purposes. Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. This contrasts with the presentation
of segment information in prior years which was based on a
disaggregation of the Group’s financial statements into
segments based on related products. The adoption of HKFRS 8
has not resulted in significant changes in the presentation of
the Group’s segment information as segment information has
been previously presented on a basis consistent with the
internal information reported to the Group’s chief operating
decision maker.
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4. ADOPTION OF NEW / REVISED HKFRS (Continued)

HKAS 1 (Revised): Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised) requires transactions with owners to be
presented separately from all other income and expenses in a
revised statement of changes in equity. The revised Standard
however allows non-owner changes in equity to be shown in a
single statement (the statement of comprehensive income) or
two statements (the income statement and the statement of
comprehensive income). The Group has elected to prepare two
statements. In addition, the revised Standard requires that
when comparative information is restated or reclassified, a
statement of financial position as at the beginning of the
comparative period, in addition to the statements of financial
position as at the end of the current period and the
comparative period, should be presented. Since the Group and
the Company did not restate comparative information during
the year, this new requirement has no impact on the financial
statements.

HKAS 23 (Revised): Borrowing Costs

HKAS 23 (Revised) eliminates the option to expense borrowing
costs and requires that borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
should be capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. The
adoption of this revised Standard has no signification impact on
the financial statements.
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4. ADOPTION OF NEW / REVISED HKFRS (Continued)

Improvements to HKFRSs

Improvements to HKFRS (2008) contains improvements to a
number of Standards aiming to remove inconsistencies and
clarify wording in the Standards. The adoption of those
improvements had resulted in a number of changes in the
details of the Group’s accounting policies. Of those changes,
only HKAS 38 as described below is considered more relevant
to the Group:

HKAS 38 Intangible Assets: Expenditure on advertising and
promotional activities is recognised as an expense when the
Group either has the right to access the goods or has received
the service. The amendment does not have in a material impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

CRITICAL
JUDGEMENTS

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management in the preparation of
the financial statements. They affect the application of the
Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are
assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and
relevant factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where
appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period of revision and future periods, in case the revision
also affects future periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The directors review the residual value, useful lives and
depreciation method of property, plant and equipment on an
annual basis, through careful consideration with regards to
expected usage, wear-and-tear and potential technical
obsolescence to usage of the assets.

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the
directors have to exercise judgement in the area of asset
impairment, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred that may affect the asset value or such event affecting
the asset value has not been in existence; (2) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management to determine the level of
impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test.

TURNOVER AND REVENUE

The Group’s turnover and revenue represents the invoiced value
of goods sold to customers, net of returns, discounts and Value
Added Tax.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors. The Group has identified its operating
segments and prepared segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported to the
Company’s executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group's business components and
review of these components’ performance. The Company’s
executive directors consider the business principally from a
product perspective as over 90% of the Group's sales and
business are conducted in the PRC. Business reportable
operating segments identified are instant noodles, beverages,
bakery and others.

For the purposes of assessing the performance of the operating
segments and allocating resources between segments, the
executive directors assess segment profit or loss before income
tax without allocation of finance costs and share of result of
associates, which is consistent with that in the financial
statements.
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7. 2HER (&) 7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
RZBZENFRZEZENF+=A= The segment information for the year ended 31 December
T—BZAHER/NAT 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

XK DE DM Business segment analysis
2009
728 ¥ 8
FEM Inter-
Instant @ R Hfft  segment &E
noodles  Beverages Bakery Others  elimination Group

TET TXTL TXTL TXT TXT TXT
US$'000  USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  USS'000

EEL e Turnover and revenue

IR P& Revenue from external customers 2,307,513 2,541,962 155,232 76,406 — 5,081,113
R G Inter-segment revenue 160 2,829 1,352 81,563 (85,904) —
PR ERENE Segment turnover and revenue 2,307,673 2,544,791 156,584 157,969 (85,904) 5,081,113
THEE Segment results 325,566 287,075 8,695 7,629 (763) 628,202
HEER Finance costs (12,644)
EEBENREE Share of results of associates 9,550 9,550
BEATER Profit before taxation 625,108
WA Taxation (124,613)
KEEZRA Profit for the year 500,495
BE Assets

PHEE Segment assets 1,436,047 1,743,479 119,682 1,068,872  (1,027,658) 3,340,422
BENFER Interests in associates 61,892 61,892
RARBE Unallocated assets 5,379
BESE Total assets 3,407,693
g Liabilities

PHER Segment liabilities 510,404 868,598 39,456 417,087 (483,195) 1,352,350
APEREE Unallocated liabilities 146,279
BELAS Total liabilities 1,498,629
Higs Other information

FERNEARE Capital expenditures 126,982 363,443 196 16,493 — 507,114
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7. aHER (#) SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
EBxaBo (B) Business segment analysis (Continued)
2008
ik

ki Inter-

Instant # He gt Aot segment o)

noodles  Beverages Bakery Others  elimination Group

FET TET TET TET FET FET

US$000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

EEREANG Turnover and revenue
LY Y= & Revenue from external customers 2,084,830 1,924,119 149,922 113,182 — 4,272,053
Dz Wz Inter-segment revenue 212 155 1,482 83,915 (85,764) —
7 H0 £ 5 58 B LY 25 Segment turnover and revenue 2,085,042 1,924,274 151,404 197,097 (85,764) 4,272,053
DR Segment results 202,346 253,364 6,059 32,932 (19,124) 475,577
BHER Finance costs (31,168)
AN S Share of results of associates 7,812 7,812
BB AIRR Profit before taxation 452,221
A Taxation (90,185)
REEZBF Profit for the year 362,036
BE Assets
NHEE Segment assets 1,215,017 1,482,103 61,109 622,049 (492,236) 2,888,042
BaANEER Interests in associates 68,095 68,095
RAREBE Unallocated assets 5379
BEMAE Total assets 2,961,516
=4 Liabilities
NHEE Segment Liabilities 458,789 801,633 40,226 276,336 (254,854) 1,322,130
ol =R Unallocated liabilities 100,748
AEEE Total liabilities 1,422,878
Hirgs Other information
EFRNEARY Capital expenditures 162,956 332,007 8,742 18,679 — 522,384
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HAFWA 8. OTHER NET INCOME
2009 2008
FET FETT
Us$°000 Us$'000
B 5 I a5 5 58 Exchange gains, net — 19,603
M EWA Interest income 15,579 17,307
TE WA Investment income 5,296 6,602
& B 2 W Gain on sales of
scrapped materials 13,640 13,265
I 47 B Government grants 33,395 17,068
H Others 12,003 8,582
79,913 82,427
BR B Al g Al 9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
2009 2008
LA (NA) This is stated FET FETT
T3IEE % : after charging (crediting): US$000 US$°000
BKEA Finance costs
ARAEANTBHEEZ Interest on bank and
RITREMBERZ other borrowings wholly
FE X H repayble within five years 14,915 31,168
W M E S HER{HIA  Less: interest expense capitalised
M - R REE into property, plant and equipment (2,271) =
12,644 31,168
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9. BR¥BAGEF (&) 9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)
2009 2008
HBR (N A) This is stated FE FZETT
T3IEE % : after charging (crediting): US$000 US$°000
Hitm B Other items
B IR Staff costs:
& K 7R B Salaries and wages 340,199 313,071
NS EERD Equity-settled share-based
X2 FRIA payment expenses
RIS KA : Pension costs:
FEHEHETE Defined contribution plans 32,224 22,741
RERENETE Defined benefit plans 2,177 1,308
374,600 337,120
= 20D B Auditor’s remuneration 997 798
BEEREXRE Cost of inventories 3,321,764 2,897,449
e Depreciation 196,569 181,666
By Amortisation:
T AR 4905 (B Prepaid lease payments 2,048 1,895
BREAE (EBE Intangible assets (included in
REMLEER) other operating expenses) 2,778 1,968
M - R R& Impairment loss on property,
2R EEE plant and equipment 25,778 15,742
AfHESRHEE Impairment loss on available-for-
ZOREEE sale financial assets 342 —
2B M A FEKEE K Minimum lease payments
in respect of operating
lease charges for premises 30,766 26,789
HEME  MERZE Loss (Gain) on disposal of property,
2 B () plant and equipment 2,051 (1,059)
HEHBAR WS Gain on disposal of interest
in a subsidiary (3,285) —
HEZARBEIER Gain on disposal of financial
EEHERERN assets at fair value
SRLEE 2 W through profit or loss — (1,707)
i W Bk (Was) F 58 Exchange losses (gains), net 675 (19,603)
A2 A Interest income (15,579) (17,307)
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS

The aggregate amounts of emoluments received or receivable

™ by the Company’s directors are as follows:
2009
§eR DR % A
A& LHE
E=fg Salaries A Share-
Directors'’  and other Discretionary Nt based At
fees emoluments bonuses  Sub-total  payments Total
USs$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
HIES Executive directors:
BREM Wei Ing-Chou 200 671 134 1,005 433 1,438
FBR Takeshi Ida 80 - - 80 - 80
RER Wu Chung-Yi 50 8 - 58 - 58
BER Wei Ying-Chiao 50 12 — 62 — 62
HER Ryo Yoshizawa 50 12 — 62 — 62
FEL—H Junichiro Ida 50 12 - 62 - 62
BN Independent non-
= executive directors:
R Hsu Shin-Chun 50 12 - 62 - 62
FRE Lee Tiong-Hock 50 8 — 58 — 58
ZREX Michio Kuwahara 50 12 - 62 — 62
630 747 134 1,511 433 1,944
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0.EEREREEMS @)

ARREFD R ER . S B
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EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

The aggregate amounts of emoluments received or receivable

T (&) by the Company’s directors are as follows: (Continued)
2008
ek SARR AR 32
At e ZHE
Rk Salaries 4 Share-
Directors'’  and other  Discretionary N based Bt
fees  emoluments bonuses Sub-total payments Total
Us$‘000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000 US$000 US$'000
HITEE: Executive directors:
RIEM Wei Ing-Chou 100 416 153 669 128 797
HER Takeshi Ida 80 - - 80 — 80
REE Wu Chung-Yi 50 12 — 62 — 62
RER Wei Ying-Chiao 50 16 = 66 = 66
TER Ryo Yoshizawa 50 16 - 66 — 66
i i Junichiro Ida 50 16 - 66 - 66
BN Independent non-
e executive directors:
R Hsu Shin-Chun 50 12 - 62 - 62
ERE Lee Tiong-Hock 50 16 = 66 = 66
EREX Michio Kuwahara
(RZZZNF (appointed on 1
WA—BEZM)  April 2008) 37 12 — 49 — 49
PIIFE Kazuo Ogawa
(RZBENF (resigned on 1
I A—AEE) April 2008) 13 4 — 17 — 17
530 520 153 1,203 128 1,331
REZZBENFR=FEN\FT-AZ No directors have waived emoluments in respect of the years
i CHEIER RS £ E SR ended 31 December 2009 and 2008.
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include one director (2008: one) whose
emoluments is reflected in the analysis presented above. Details

M) AEZ2BE BT ¢ of the emoluments of the remaining four individuals (2008:
four) are as follows:

2009 2008

FET SFEEE

US$°000 US$°000

FekEMMe Salaries and other emoluments 1,291 1,053

VARR 7 2 A 2 3B Share-based payments 665 236

TEAL Discretionary bonuses 331 348

2,287 1,637

XA R # A T2 Bl 4 5B

The emoluments were paid to the four highest paid individuals

I as follows:
EEAE
B < 48 7 Emoluments band Number of individuals
2009 2008
FEx FETT
Us$’000 Us$’000
320,513% JT £448,718% T US$320,513 to US$448,718
(2,500,001 7t £3,500,000/8 7t) (HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,500,000) — 3
448,719 L £576,923% T US$448,719 to US$576,923
(3,500,001 7T & 4,500,0007 JT.) (HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,500,000) 2 1
576,924% ;L £705,128% JT US$576,924 to US$705,128
(4,500,001 7T £5,500,0007 J) (HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,500,000) 1 —
705,129 JT £833,333% 7T US$705,129 to US$833,333
(5,500,001 7t £6,500,000/8 7t) (HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,500,000) 1 —
4 4
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11. B8 11. TAXATION
2009 2008
FET FETT
Us$°000 Us$000
AEEHIE - Current tax - PRC Enterprise income tax
PECERER
REE Current year 103,252 60,023
ARTFEE DB E Under provision in prior year 430 672
103,682 60,695
IE fE B IR Deferred taxation
EERERZ Origination and reversal of temporary
TRERFHE differences, net 4,696 6,390
BRAEERFEZ Effect of withholding tax on the
Bt B8~ 7] ] i o> B F distributable profits
2 TEREH (i 5E28) of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries (Note 28) 16,235 23,100
REEHIEAEE Total tax charge for the year 124,613 90,185

MERBY THARBRANEEZHK
ABBERBIA -

HRAEERFRNESE L ERRD
i | P i X b R AR R
fa e

NERERHESESEE KmM
REtEmNTRBENEBRARIYAEXIE
ARFPBEINERFEOBIEMMRR - N
S B K B0 47 P /B8 2 B B SZ IR AR I il
MR R-FTELF+_A=1+—
A LARTIZ16% M BB K@M E X
BH - sHEEEMNFEMLG - NE
HEBEEFENMAERIERER
BR AIREMFEZEREHRT
BEEREN  REER=FEHREX
W EE (RERRH) -

The Cayman Islands levies no tax on the income of the
Company and the Group.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as there
was no assessable profit in Hong Kong for the year.

Subsidiaries in the PRC which engage in manufacture and sale
of instant noodles, beverages and bakery products are subject
to tax laws applicable to foreign investment enterprises in the
PRC. Most of the subsidiaries are located at economic
development zones and were entitled to a preferential PRC
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) rate of 15% before 31 December
2007. Also, they were fully exempt from PRC Enterprise Income
Tax for two years starting from the first profit-making year
followed by a 50% reduction for the next three years,
commencing from the first profitable year after offsetting all
unexpired tax losses carried forward from the previous years
("Tax Holidays").
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11. TAXATION (Continued)

According to the Tax Relief Notice (Cai Shui [2001] no. 202) on
the Grand Development of Western Region jointly issued by the
Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of Taxation and
China Customs, foreign investment enterprises located in the
western region of PRC with principal revenue of over 70%
generated from the encouraged business activities are entitled
to a preferential income tax rate of 15% for 10 years from 1
January 2001 to 31 December 2010. Accordingly, certain
subsidiaries located in Western Region are entitled to a
preferential rate of 15% (2008:15%).

For the PRC subsidiaries not entitled to a preferential PRC EIT,
the applicable PRC EIT is at a statutory rate of 25% (2008:
25%).

Pursuant to the State Council Circular on the Implementation of
the Transitional Concession Polices for Enterprise Income Tax
(Guo Fa [2007] no. 39), enterprises previously entitled to a
reduced tax rate shall have a grace period of five years
regarding the tax reduction commencing on 1 January 2008;
the subsidiaries which were entitled to a 15% EIT rate will be
subjected to tax rates of 18% in 2008, 20% in 2009, 22% in
2010, 24% in 2011 and 25% in 2012 and thereafter. The
subsidiaries that have been granted tax concessions under the
tax preferential policies in the Grand Development of Western
Region shall continue to enjoy the tax concessions until expiry.
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11. B8 (48) 11. TAXATION (Continued)

AEBEZHEZEHBARKLEME
i 77 B RIA R B R 5T R BB A A
ZEWMBEZERR

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from
theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rates
prevailing in the countries in which the subsidiaries operate as
follows:

B2 EMR/AT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

-~
T

J:

96

B IE B 35 2 #1 AR Reconciliation of tax expenses
2009 2008
FET FETT
Us$°000 Us$'000
B 7 51 v ) Profit before taxation 625,108 452,221
REBEMBERBEERAE Income tax at domestic tax rates
BEARN R 2 BE applicable to profits in the
respective countries 156,277 113,055
DA R X Non-deductible expenses 14,565 12,832
ERRBMEA Tax exempt revenue (4,425) (3,929)
RERTIEEE Unrecognised tax losses 2,972 3,663
RERERMEEZER Unrecognised temporary differences 730 =
MK BEY RERRBER Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses (532) (2,198)
758 716 52 R Tax Holidays (24,333) (23,869)
R RIH & 2 B R A R Lower tax rates for specific districts (36,557) (34,126)
BRASENAFE 2 EAF Effect of withholding tax on the
A o B A 2 TER A distributable profits of the Group’s
(Mt5E31) PRC subsidiaries (Note 31) 16,235 23,100
RTEE DB E Under provision in prior years 430 672
HAty Others (749) 985
REEHIE Tax expense for the year 124,613 90,185

HRABMRAEDL(ZEZE N\ F

250/0) ©

The applicable tax rate was 25% (2008: 25%).
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12. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to Owners of the Company
includes a loss of US$5,601,000 (2008: US$8,215,000) which
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.

Pt e BEAR R RARFE m A 2 R Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s profit for
R the year:
2009 2008
FET FET
Us$’000 US$'000
ERAARIRE NEE Amount of consolidated loss attributable
IR EGEGEE to Owners dealt with in the Company’s
& 18 financial statements (5,601) (8,215)
EF—HMEBRFEREME(  Dividends from subsidiaries and
M AR R B & A RIRRE - associates attributable to the profits of
W E R FANERE RIKE  the previous financial years, approved
and paid during the year 206,180 13,226
NF E AR AR F Company’s profit for the year 200,579 5,011
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13. K2
(a) AFREBZKE :

(a)

13. DIVIDENDS

Dividends attributable to the year:

2009 2008
FET FET
US$'000 Us$'000
EERBER 2 KBRS Final dividend proposed after the end
BT E B 3.433 1 of the reporting period of US3.43
(ZEENF : cents (2008: US2.33 cents)
T E@AR2.33%) per ordinary share 191,627 130,172

R-ZZE—ZTF=ZF_+_HNE
& EEEREERIBREBER
T BAR 3433l o thEFEARER
BREBHRRERT TR EBEN
e BEREAEIEHE_ZS—
TF+A=+—HLEFEZR

BAR -

(o) RAFALLERRANFRNIRE 2

At meeting held on 22 March 2010, the directors
recommended the payment of final dividend of US3.43
cents per ordinary share. The proposed final dividend has
not been recognised as dividend payables in the statement
of financial position, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of retained profits for the year ending 31
December 2010.

Dividends attributable to the previous financial year,

&8 - approved and paid during the year:
2009 2008
SEESTw FETT
US$'000 Us$'000
RARFE AR E R RZASERA  Final dividend in respect of the previous
K B B 1 A F B R HA financial year, approved and paid during
% B AT IR E AR the year, of US2.33cents
2.33FANM (ZFZ)NEF - (2008: US1.62 cents) per ordinary share 130,172 90,537
SR T @162 0)
RAFRAERKAFERN  Special dividend in respect of the
REBRAI—FE 2 previous financial year, approved and
FRIREREREBERK paid during the year, US$Nil
ZEW(ZEENF : (2008: US1.07 cents)
AR EBR1.0740) per ordinary share — 59,799
130,172 150,336
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14. 8 R % 7 14. EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) BREFREF (a) Basic earnings per share
BRORF TIRBARRREENRN The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
FE 15 & #) 383,207,000% T profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
(20084 : 260,404,000 1) & Company of US$383,207,000 (2008: US$260,404,000) and
REEEBTEBR 2 METH the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
f% 2(5,586,793,360 (20084 : % 5,586,793,360 shares (2008: 5,588,264,856 shares) in
#5,588,264,856) 5+ & ° issue during the year.
(b) EREHFRF (b) Diluted earnings per share
FAZERESRNTIBEBEAR The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
A kKR E B & M OF E the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
383,207,000 st ( 20084 the Company of US$383,207,000 (2008: US$260,404,000)
260,404,000 7T) & F N & A% and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
o F 19 R £ 5,596,995,082 5,596,995,082 shares (2008: 5,588,264,856 shares),
(20084 : fx 21 5,588,264,856) calculated as
FTHE o
B AR I T 15 B (HEE) Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)
2009 2008
FR F AR
‘000 ‘000
Rt+t-—A=+—8Bx2 Weighted average number of ordinary
R IL: Bl shares at 31 December 5,586,793 5,588,265
KNAFIEERAESTEI 481 Effect of deemed issue of shares under the
BOEBREECRE Company’s share option scheme 10,202 —
R+-_A=+—HB2 Weighted average number of ordinary
TR INEFE S8 (#58)  shares (diluted) at 31 December 5,596,995 5,588,265
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15. 9% - B R %

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(a) *%H (a) Group
EEVET ]
BERRE Electrical
Machinery appliances REXE ERIE
BT and and Miscellaneous  Construction &t
Buildings ~ equipment  equipment  equipment in progress Total
FET FET FET FET FET FET
US$000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000

RABHE-HZ  Recondiliation of carrying

“ZZ\FF+ZA  amount - year ended

=+—HIEEE 31 December 2008
REA At beginning of year 349,352 948,052 12,116 34,978 222,850 1,567,348
NE Additions 15,499 124,119 5,909 19,328 342,159 507,014
B RS Transfer upon completion 62,883 298,146 1,017 7,381 (369,427) =
FWEBSE () Impairment loss (Note i) — (15,742) — — = (15,742)
e Disposals (4,976) (4,392) (312) (1,410) — (11,090)
il Depreciation (26,907) (141,381) (3,503) (9,875) — (181,666)
CEEV Reclassification 3,818 2,808 47 (6,673) - =
AR Exchange adjustment 23,198 69,212 822 2,189 13,160 108,581
WEHH At end of the reporting period 422,867 1,280,822 16,096 45,918 208,742 1,974,445
RABHE-HZ  Reconciliation of carrying

ZEEAETZA  amount - year ended

=Z+-AILEE 31 December 2009
REA At beginning of year 422,867 1,280,822 16,096 45,918 208,742 1,974,445
NE Additions 20,377 94,900 4,367 37,649 340,582 497,875
BN RER Transfer upon completion 51,584 119,560 517 8,765 (180,426) -
WMERE ()  Impairment loss (Note i) — (25,778) — — — (25,778)
& Disposals (4,744) (9,764) (462) (1,467) — (16,437)
HEHBA A Disposal of a subsidiary (2,739) (13,628) (433) (605) (458) (17,863)
il Depreciation (26,704) (148,143) (3,686) (18,036) - (196,569)
HEERE Reclassification — 7 (2,931) 2,924 — —
ERBE Exchange adjustment 445 661 3 (235) 91 965
REER At end of the

reporting period 461,086 1,298,637 13,4711 74,913 368,531 2,216,638
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(a) =~%@ (& (a) Group (Continued)
BERRE
BERRME Electrical
Machinery  appliances RERE EEIE
BT and and Miscellaneous  Construction &t
Buildings equipment equipment equipment in progress Total
FET FET FET FET FET TET
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
R=ZBBNE-HF—HF At1January 2009
RE Cost 602,019 2,048,748 35,377 87,828 208,742 2,982,714
ZEHMEM Accumulated depreciation
REEE and impairment losses ~ (179,152) (767,926) (19,281) (41,910) —  (1,008,269)
422,867 1,280,822 16,096 45,918 208,742 1,974,445
R=ZEnE At 31 December 2009
+-A=+-H
RE Cost 665,368 2,135,885 32,117 132,662 368,531 3,334,563
2 HEA Accumulated depreciation
REEE and impairment losses  (204,282) (837,248) (18,646) (57,749) - (1,117,925)
461,086 1,298,637 13,471 74,913 368,531 2,216,638
Hat - Notes :
(i) KEREZRIDIKLERBEDRE (i) After considering the technical obsolescence and

(ii)

FZBREREFTEAEBREZ
BTN RBE 2 AT - W
fl ez M 23 SR 5 AT W Bl 6 78 (IR 1%
Ri% R R EERE L EK
R) - WHERZERREZRE
518 525,778,000 L (= E &
J\4F : 15,742,000%7T) °

REER @ AEEREFES K
10,582,000% T (ZEZ/\F -
11,821,000 7T) R 5 - #
BREBE  ERAEEEECE
gl

(i)

reassessing the assets redeployment policy and assets
replacement strategy of the Group, management has
assessed the recoverable amounts of certain plant and
machinery, principally based on their fair value less
costs to sell in the market, and on this basis,
recognised an impairment loss of US$25,778,000
(2008: US$15,742,000) for the year.

Property, plant and equipment with an aggregate net
book value at the end of the reporting period of
US$10,582,000 (2008: US$11,821,000) were pledged
to secure the Group’s credit facilities.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements
BE-ZZAFE+_-_A=1+—HIEE For the year ended 31 December 2009

(b) &2 =] (b) Company
2009 2008
Machinery Machinery
and Miscellaneous and  Miscellaneous

equipment  equipment Total equipment equipment Total
FEn FEn FEn FET FET TET
USs$000 US$000 USs$'000 US$°000 US$'000 US$'000

R TH (B 8 BR Reconciliation of

carrying amount
REA] At beginning of the year 210 12 22 305 13 318
NE Additions — 5 5 5 4 9
H & Disposals — — — (1) (1) 2)
e Depreciation (93) (4) (97) (101) (4) (105)
T 5 S R Exchange adjustment 1 - 1 2 — 2
NEER At end of the

reporting period 118 13 131 210 12 222

M+=H=+—H At31December
[RE Cost 807 50 857 793 45 838
R E Accumulated depreciation (689) (37) (726) (583) (33) (616)
118 13 131 210 12 222
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

rEE
Group
B
Trademarks
2009 2008
FET FET
USs$’000 Us$’000
Hf TH 5 ¥ BR Reconciliation of carrying amount
RE ) At beginning of the year 9,733 11,701
F Amortisation (2,778) (1,968)
REEH At end of the reporting period 6,955 9,733
R&EER At end of the reporting period
JRE Cost 17,657 17,657
RET Accumulated amortisation (10,702) (7,924)
6,955 ©),733
BREEAERKREASHEELEER Intangible assets represent trademarks exchanged through the
BRZ EF - BIREHEEARER reorganisation of a joint venture. The trademarks are amortised

tEFFHMTER -

over the estimated useful life of seven and a half years.
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17. B QR ERE 17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES
AT
Company

2009 2008

DT FET

US$'000 Us$'000

JE LA  IRREFIEE  Unlisted shares, at cost 350,548 363,148
NGRS Amounts due from subsidiaries 285,414 193,278
635,962 556,426

FEN B A Al Zk 1B Amounts due to subsidiaries (102,711) (97,392)
533,251 459,034

RZZEZEANF+_A=T—HBEZEH Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2009 are

BRa 25 EY R FE40 o shown in note 40.

B B A B] > S IE S . S ﬁmountsf.olute:J from subsidiaries are un?ecureld, |nterest-fLe§d§nd
T 45 B SR - M [ — B 2 ave no fixed repayment term except for a loan to a subsidiary

for US$5,000,000 (2008: US$500,000), bearing interest at

25,000,000 T (ZZEE N\ F :
1.25% (2008: 3%) per annum and repayable within 1 year.

500,000%7T) * HIF 81.26% (= F
EUAN S 3%)&,,\7%—@@1@;@2 _ | .
B o EBAWERQAZRIEREE bearing with no fixed term of repayment.

B REREBTEERS -

Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest
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18. BE N TR 18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

KEH KN F
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
SFEEm FETL SFEEm FETL
Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000
R /NE R = N Cost of investment in associates
REBEZEI LT Listed outside Hong Kong 23,836 23,836 14,748 14,748
JEET Unlisted 18,831 18,831 13,872 13,872
42,667 42,667 28,620 28,620
WiE & G 54 Share of post-acquisition
HBRE W% 2 results, net of dividends
received 30,370 23,813 — —
73,037 66,480 28,620 28,620
JIE Uk Bt 2 A B R Due from associates 35,930 64,161 33,981 38,974
JES B E R T AIE Due to associates (47,075) (62,546) — (179)
61,892 68,095 62,601 67,415
REER Em Market value of listed
BtrzmE shares at the end of
reporting period 117,711 58,334 79,661 39,479
FE U (FE ) Bt & A R R S = E R The amounts due from (to) associates are unsecured, interest-

28 &ﬁliﬁfkﬁﬂ o i (8
) REFREEEZE QR

(EREREES

due approximate their fair values.

free and have no fixed repayment term. The carrying amounts
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1

BMERNTRER (&)

ESRREEATEAFELARERE
BABRASEEEFEZCERE D

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates at the end of the
reporting period, which in the opinion of the directors

MEZBEARMAT principally affect the Group’s results for the year or form a
substantial portion of the Group’s net assets, are as follows:
B3 RARA/
B it & 2 Bl
Place of Particulars of class 11 BR Lt
418 incorporation of issued shares/ Proportion TEXEK
Name /operation registered capital of ownership interest Principal activity
E# B
Directly Indirectly
K2R@IERH & 506,062,900 i & 11.61% 5.55%  HERHE
BRAR([R2]) BRI EKI0T RmRARE
Wei Chuan Foods Taiwan 506,062,900 Manufacture
Corporation Limited ordinary shares of and sale of foods
("Wei Chuan”) NT$10 each and beverages
BE(RER)BR REfs 34,000,000% i iR 40.80% —  HERHE
ERAT FRIET BEMH
Tingzheng (Cayman Islands) Cayman Islands 34,000,000 Manufacture
Holding Corp. ordinary shares of and sale of
US$1 each packaging materials
ARE (M) Ra HhE 17,100,000% 7T/ - 29%  HERHEEKH
BERARF 17,100,000 ¢ Manufacture
Kagome (Hangzhou) PRC US$17,100,000 / and sale of
Foods Co., Ltd. US$17,100,000 beverages

BRIREREBIRI LTI - AR Z
NRERIFLMZRF -

EBAEEERENETREEZN
RIIEEAZRESN  EERRUE
RAEBZHBERT -

All associates are unlisted corporate entities, except for Wei
Chuan which is a company listed outside Hong Kong.

The Group exercises significant influence through

representation on the board of directors of Wei Chuan. In the
opinion of directors, Wei Chuan is an associate of the Group.
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18. BME AR R (4) 18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
REBRBERT ZERERIN Summary of financial information of associates at the Group's
WHEERBENT : effective interest are as follows:
rEH
Group
2009 2008
FET FET
Us$°000 Us$'000
BE Assets 157,683 180,559
BfE Liabilities (83,594) (113,538)
W g5 Revenue 190,156 203,189
RFE 2% Profit for the year 9,674 7,835
19. TRV EE 19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS
T 4R E e A BRI 2 R HR Prepaid lease payments represent cost paid for medium-term
THE T o 3% AN 70 & B leasehold land in the PRC. The cost is amortised over the
HeoMNEERI2EAAANEEESES leasehold period. The amount to be amortised within twelve
2,216,000 Tt (Z T T )\ F : months after the end of the reporting period amounted to
2,022,000 7T) B &t ATART FRIA R H US$2,216,000 (2008: US$2,022,000) and is included in
it P& YT 3R I8 © prepayments and other receivables.
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20 HHEESRHEE 20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
REE P NG/NEE]
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
SFEZom FET SFEZom FET
US$°000 US$°000 US$’000 US$'000
FLEHREFRE Equity investments,
unlisted
R1E Costs 11,452 11,462 3,054 3,028
B EE Impairment losses (8,044) (7,702) (342) —
3,408 3,760 2,712 3,028

I TIRA IR L RAE S Y B
RE - BRBARMGH AL BENE
REERASS EERAELTR
&2 DR EETAR MR - 8
EHBEARARER EE B 2R
Bt & -

AMHEEEmEETA T EEZ
1H :

The unlisted investments represent long-term investments in
unlisted equity securities. They are measured at cost less
impairment at the end of each reporting period because the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that
the directors are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be
measured reliably.

The available-for-sales financial assets are denominated in the
following currencies:

RAEH KA F

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FE FETT FE FETT
US$°000 US$'000 US$°000 US$'000
ETT us$ 1,014 1,014 1,014 1,014
AR RMB 732 732 — —
ek New Taiwan dollar 1,472 1,445 1,472 1,445
Ht Others 190 569 226 569
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21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT

NEeEMEE OR LOSS
rEE b NN
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FET FET FET FET
Us$°000 Us$'000 Us$‘000 Us$'000
BIFEERE Investments held
for trading
—REBEBUAINET Z - equity securities
&% 7 3 5 listed outside Hong Kong 3,024 — 3,024 —
—FELEMEE — unlisted investments — 550 — 24
—EXTEERES — US$ currency fund 1,002 — 1,002 =
4,026 550 4,026 24

BRrBEIIENAEERREEE S
BMEETDATNINEESIE :

denominated in the following currencies:

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are

RE ¥ YN
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FETT FETT FETT FETT
Us$°000 Us$'000 Uss$’000 Us$'000
ETT Us$ 1,002 550 1,002 24
ek New Taiwan dollar 3,024 — 3,024 —
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1\

22. 7% 22. INVENTORIES
AEE
Group
2009 2008
SFEEm FETL
US$’000 US$'000
R Raw materials 107,865 98,249
TE & m Work in progress 7,658 8,110
247X on Finished goods 97,400 88,545
212,923 194,904
23. EE W BR X 23. TRADE RECEIVABLES

AEEZHERNBHA/EIUIR - &4
THHEZEEHREER30EN
R o BRARUWARR (KRR R R AR
BEEER) REE B 2R DTSR
(I

The majority of the Group’s sales is cash-on-delivery. The

remaining balances of sales are mainly at credit term ranging

from 30 to 90 days. The ageing analysis of trade receivables

(net of impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts) as at the

end of the reporting period is as follows:

AEE

Group
2009 2008
FEx FETT
Us$‘000 Us$'000
0 - 90K 0 - 90 days 105,985 117,008
90K JA E Over 90 days 9,606 12,936
115,591 129,944
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23. B R (4) 23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
ERHMERBEZERERERR Ageing of amounts that are past due but not impaired:
rEE
Group
2009 2008
FExT FET
Us$’000 Us$'000
E@EFERE 2 EUFIE  Balances exceed normal credit period
BHISOK A Within 30 days 5,398 6,031
EEIB0E 90K 30-90 days 3,035 3,435
8 HI R 190K Over 90 days 3,318 3,352
11,751 12,818

24,

ELBHERRENEKIER - 28
BAKEZRAARFLENBIR
F-aRrEEEYEEANE (L &K
5 B0 4 8 E L AR RER BRI RUE - I
AEEERREERNAWE - N
[ 3 AR5 A (A7 8255 Le PR R AR R RO 4K
e

ERWEREZAARKIIE -

BHRITEM

9,358,000% 7t ( = & T N\ &

4,889,000 L) IR{THFERE T -
ERRHRASEERFEBRA ZHBEA
AEEZRENRITEEZ2ERR -

The trade receivables that are past due but not impaired related
to a number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. The Group has not impaired these
debtors as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the directors believe that the amounts are
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

The trade receivables are mainly denominated in RMB.

24. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

Bank deposits of US$9,358,000 (2008: US$4,889,000) have
been pledged as security for general banking and trade finance
facilities, including the issuance of bank acceptance bills,
granted to the Group by banks.
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5. BeRERREER 25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
REH
Group
2009 2008
SEEZ FETL
Us$‘000 Us$'000
RITEHRERS Bank balances and cash 510,831 380,075
AR 1T 17 Pledged bank deposits 9,358 4,889
RiFEHEMERYT As stated in the consolidated
statement of cash flow 520,189 384,964
BERERIIBESER N N EEZ] The cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the
& : following currencies:
REH
Group
2009 2008
FETT FET
Uss$’000 Us$:000
AR RMB 492,794 321,354
ETT us$ 17,530 59,821
BT EURO 5,129 1,846
Hfth Others 4,736 1,943
BREINERBREE D - RAM 37 Details of the Group’s foreign currency risk and credit risk
it o discussion are set out in note 37.
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26. BT 26.1SSUED CAPITAL
AAF
Company
2009 2008
BOEE SPEom Bin & B FTER
No. of shares US$'000 No. of shares US$'000
ETE Authorised:
FH%0.005% T Ordinary shares of 7,000,000,000 35,000| 7,000,000,000 35,000
TR US$0.005 each
ERTRAR Issued and fully paid:
REH] At beginning of the year 5,586,793,360 27,934 5,588,705,360 27,943
AERE) Share repurchase — — (1,912,000) (9)
REER At end of the reporting period 5,586,793,360 27,934 | 5,586,793,360 27,934
27. #E 27. RESERVES
(a) *&H (a) Group
NEE 7 RE RN HEA & BB The retained profits of the Group include profits of
&N Az 254 H)20,898,000% US$20,898,000 (2008: US$14,407,000) accumulated by
T (ZZZ)\F : 14,407,0003 associates of the Group.
JL) °
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27. ke (#)

27. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Company

(b) &2
BRE
R RE MegE fkfe
1] &4 1] Share- ®E
Capital %E  Exchange based Pkl
redemption Share translation payment Retained ok
reserve premium reserve reserve profits Total
TET T T£T T£T T£T T£T
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$000 US$000 US$'000
R-ZEN\E-F-H At 1 January 2008 36 332,478 (1,005) — 227,333 558,842
—ZRNFRT Profit for 2008 - - - - 5,011 5,011
ERER Exchange translation difference = = 208 = = 208
R-ZZEENEERKN Share repurchase in 2008 9 (1,986) — — — (1,977)
RN ERLEERM LT Recognition of equity-settled
ZE share-based payment reserve — — — 750 = 750
ERZFELEHFIRE 2007 special dividend paid - - - - (59,799)  (59,799)
BEN-ZEZLERBKES 2007 final dividend paid — — — — (90,537) (90,537)
RZEENE At 31 December 2008 45 330,492 (797) 750 82,008 412,498
t=A=1-8
R-ZZhE-HA-H At 1 January 2009 45 330,492 (797) 750 82,008 412,498
“ERTNEEN Profit for 2009 - - - - 200,579 200,579
ERER Exchange translation difference — — (436) — — (436)
R EREERM L Recognition of equity-settled
LB share-based payment reserve — — = 2,280 — 2,280
ZESN\FRRKRHKES 2008 final dividend paid - - - - (130172)  (130,172)
R-ZEENE At 31 December 2009 45 330,492 (1,233) 3,030 152,415 484,749
tZR=1-H




B0 B %

BB FEEDRERNEFSZ AT
AB AR B R AR R B D 2 5K

M &AL °

10 R B

REAESEQRGRY - BRBIAEE
BIBRNE - TRENRSSEMT
HET - BERTROKABOHRE
BYHERERMEER -

RiraEREARREFRSHER
AR ZHE °

ERAERRERBREZBRAT » AR
Az EENH SR FRE - R
RAIRDIREENBENEEERE
ERPEBANER - Bt - AR
ARZEENF+=ZA=+—H2H
5 Ik 45 A2 482,907,000 T (=
=\ 4 : 412,500,000% ) °

el

SHNEBREHE

SN A0S 2 B R BRI TH IR IR AR
RRERINERE 2GR -

—REE

WEREGEASG - PEMEAREAE
B—ENDRERTERF (RERF
BesRiolREREalEThEME AR Z
EERB AR5 10% 2 FOIaE R A
—RREE W REECRBEERS
RPN R AR AR AR 2 50% B ¢ 5%
NI A BABEE A -
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27. RESERVES (Continued)

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve has been set up in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on
repurchases and cancellations of the Company’s own shares.

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, where a
company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or
otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the value
of the premiums on their shares shall be transferred to share
premium account.

The application of the share premium account is governed by
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Share premium of the Company is distributable to shareholders
subject to the provisions of the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately following
the distribution the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business. Accordingly, the
Company'’s distributable reserves as at 31 December 2009
amounted to US$482,907,000 (2008: US$412,500,000).

Exchange translation reserve

The exchange translation reserve has been set up and are dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for
foreign currency translation.

General reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, the PRC
subsidiaries are required to appropriate to the general reserve
an amount not less than 10% of the amount of profit after
taxation (as reported in the respective statutory financial
statements of the PRC subsidiaries prepared in accordance with
PRC accounting regulations). If the accumulated general reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital of the respective PRC
subsidiaries, the enterprise may not be required to make any
further appropriation.
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#=

28 L)\ *E ﬁ;. n\El

EROX2XE

B ERMWEIRESTE ([5181)) 2
REREENR-_ZTENFE=RA=1+H
AR ZArEZEMDEB2EE
(AT W HERM MY HAKEE
TR E B

EZeNRAZERTUATALER
1

(i) ’AT&/HW%
FBEE

A E ] 2 B sk
THRABESSHE

\
A

(i) 2ARENBARNERNES
(BRIFATEZRBILIENT
5%)

(i) AR REME BN EREMR -

wAE o HER BERRRE-
BRE R BIRRALE - % AT 8 RAEMRA

NElZ EMERERT EIFTE T 2 BAR
BERZBHBETREBARATR
KA saElgn =222 NE=A
ZTH)ZBEEITRONI0% - BE
ZETNF+ZA=1+—HI BE
F 8 8 I% 4 538,448,000/ (—ZZ
JUE : 11,760,000) © M RFT{E R E
B # 537,126,000 — T T )\ F :
11,760,000) ' {h & A FE B E 1T
B 0.7% (ZZEZEN\F 1 0.2%) °

SEEEZTEIREMBRET
T%ﬁﬂﬁﬁm?ﬁ%ﬂx%( (BHREDTRE

RARTEZBERE)  EEARTH
MZT_EARTSEBERTHEH

B EBRTRONI% - ZR1%ARH
BT AENRRENALE

28. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 20 March 2008.
The Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is established to
recognise and acknowledge the contributions the eligible
participants (as defined below) had or may have made to the
Group.

The Broad of Directors may, at its discretion, offer to grant an
option to:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries; and

(iii) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the
maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme and under any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the total number of shares in issue at the time the Scheme is
adopted by the shareholders (i.e. 20 March 2008). At 31
December 2009, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted was 38,448,000 (2008: 11,760,000)
and remained outstanding under the Scheme was 37,126,000
(2008: 11,760,000), representing 0.7% (2008:0.2%) of the
shares of the Company in issue at that date.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company (including
both exercised and outstanding options) to an individual in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1%
of the shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant
of options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to the
shareholders’ approval.
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28. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION

(Continued)

The exercise price is determined by the Company’s Board of
Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, save that no
option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has been
granted. The options will be vested after five years from the
date of grant. The consideration on the grant of option is
HK$1. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company.

Details of share options granted by the Company pursuant to
the Scheme and the share options outstanding as at December
2009 and 2008 are as follows:

RITEH
RTBEREHE BRESE
Number of Number of TEE
®FBH share options share options Exercise TEH
Grant date granted outstanding price Exercisable period
2009 2008 HK$

20 March 2008 11,760,000 11,530,000 11,760,000 9.28 21 March 2013 to g..
—TT)\F 20 March 2018 =
=R=+8H —B—=% 3
ZA=t+—AHE £
alj
—E-N\F 2
—A=+H 2
R
22 April 2009 26,688,000 25,596,000 — 9.38 23 April 2014 to g
—E2EBAEF 22 April 2019 >
mA=+=8H —E-NF E
MA=+=8% S
—E-hE z
A=+=H o
=
(1]
[a)
o
3
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.UEREEROGITZ2RE (&) 28.EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION

(Continued)
8 AR AT 2 B AR v e EL g P9 AT Movements in the number of option outstanding and their
B2BEMT : weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
AEBRAEAA T
Group and Company
IEFHITHEE
Weighted BREHE
average Number of
exercise price options
B Fiz
HK$ ‘000
RZZEZENF—H—H At 1 January 2008 — —
RERNET Granted during the year 9.28 11,760
—EENE 31 December 2008 and 9.28 11,760
+ZA=+—-HK At 1 January 2009
R=—ZZEAE—H—H
RE AR Granted during the year 9.38 26,688
REFERZI Forfeited during the year 9.36 (1,322)
R-ZEBEELE At 31 December 2009 9.35 37,126
+t=A=+-—H
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.UEREEROINTZRE (&) 28.EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION
(Continued)

R-BZAEF+_A=+—HBEKT
£ 2 Bk 217018 /59.28% T =k
938 L (=TT /\F : 9.288 L) &
#EFHFesE LTTEH R9.38F
—EE)\F :975F) HE_TZT
NE+_A=+—8 BECAEBER
BEEEITHE -

The options outstanding at 31 December 2009 had an exercise
price of HK$9.28 or HK$9.38 (2008: HK$9.28) and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 9.38 years (2008: 9.75
years). No option had been exercised up to 31 December 2009.

BREXRTEBZAAENRERER
SRR AANE - AZTEXBERIET
BEEAEE  RAXIAZEIAERD
BREAEBAERAZES - 2R
BZAERUBIBRTHEE - 5t8
BREAAERERZERDT @ —

The fair value of the share options granted is measured at the
date of grant, using the binomial option pricing model, taking
into account the terms and conditions of the share-based
arrangement. The fair value calculated is inherently subjective
and uncertain due to the assumptions made and the limitations
of the model used. The inputs into the model are as follows:—

RIS AMREL 2 BRE

Share options granted on

200843 HA20H 2009545 22H
20 March 2008 22 April 2009
il =DZA/NG | Fair value at grant date FH3.74% T EKR3.348 T
HK$3.74 per share HK$3.34 per share
ETBzZWmE Share price at grant date T8 8.55% 7T FH9.378 T
HK$8.55 per share HK$9.37 per share
1TEER Exercise price FH%9.288 T HF1R9.38B T

ERRBERZME

Risk-free interest rate

HK$9.28 per share
4.37%

HK$9.38 per share
2.51%

T8 B R 18 Expected volatility 40% 36%
T8 B 17 3£ & Expected life 104 105

10 years 10 years
TREAAR B & Expected dividend yield 2% 2%
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29. FEfRE

BR B FKf = Notes to the Financial Statements
BE-_TTAET+-_A=1+—BILEE For the year ended 31 December 2009

28. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION
(Continued)

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the year of share
option granted. The variables and assumptions used in
computing the fair value of the share options are based on the
directors’ best estimate.

During 2009, US$2,280,000 (2008: US$750,000) was charged
to the income statement in respect of share-based payment
transactions settled in equity.

29. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

rEH KA F
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FETT FETT FET FET
Us$'000 us$'000 Us$’000 Us$000
$RITE 2 Y 5|8y . The maturity of the unsecured
bank loans is as follows:
—E R Within one year 218,087 431,229 20,500 78,500
s In the second year 71,983 58,870 20,000 5,500
E-HETERHRE In the third to fifth years,
(BIEERERE) inclusive 45,000 76,982 45,000 —
335,070 567,081 85,500 84,000
Ak Y= Portion classified as current
mE B EE liabilities (218,087)|  (431,229) (20,500) (78,500)
ERBE D Non-current portion 116,983 135,852 65,000 5,500

ERFEFE (NEHFIER) B4.21%
—EENF  5.46%) °

The weighted average effective interest rate on the bank loans
is 4.21 % (2008: 5.46%) per annum.



2009 Annual Report 4

Bk B Kt 3 Notes to the Financial Statements
BE-_TTAE+-_A=1+—HIEE For the year ended 31 December 2009

29. FRfEE (&)
B EHRREEZ W

29. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)

BRI 5 An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’s total

FIREAR ¢ borrowings by type is as follows:

REH AT

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FETT TFETT FETT FETT
Uss‘000 US$'000 Us$000 Us$'000
B 7 A & At fixed rates 70,674 350,873 — —
7 B Fl & At floating rates 264,396 216,208 85,500 84,000
335,070 567,081 85,500 84,000

BEEEENTIERE :

The interest-bearing borrowings are denominated in the
following currencies:

rE KA T

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FET FET FET FET
Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$°000 Us$'000
AR RMB 44,855 212,769 — —
e uss$ 263,658 347,240 85,500 84,000
BX T EURO 26,557 7,072 — —

BHEINERRE I - RM 375 Details of the Group's foreign currency risk and interest rate risk

discussion are set out in note 37.
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30. BIEASHE

30. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

ok

5 H G 8
AEERAATEEE2 MATEE
577 BT AR AR SR (R RET 8 - SR
AEEFTEARLEAEZESHE
BZEEBLELHR - AEEK
N EREANERN  THBEEX
NETRARERER ZER -

RERAGE

REBNTAFBERERERHUATER
FEtEl - RSB ZFERNE
BREFHEREANAEANFEHEFE
RER - HHENERSEEREE
UEEMERENCETEBRMRG
ERARIEEZS AR ([BR]) 2 &%
MEs] - M2 BETHRABHRN
—ETENF+Z A=+ —HBUBEFHE
L4 B AR SE#ETT ©

AEERARRHERTERF TSR
E4EZ BEL T AMBARER 2K
IF

Defined contribution plans

The Group participates in defined contribution plans organised
by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC for all
PRC employees whereby the Group is required to make monthly
contributions to these plans at certain percentage of the
relevant portion of the payroll of these employees to the
pension scheme to fund the benefits. The Group has no
obligation for the payment of retirement and other post-
retirement benefits for the PRC employees other than the
monthly contributions described above.

Defined benefit plans

The Group has defined benefit plans for Taiwan employees.
Pension obligation is provided based on the length of service
and average monthly salary for the final six months of
employment. The contributions made by the Group during the
year were calculated based on advice from Messrs. Watson
Wyatt, Taiwan Branch (“Watson Wyatt”), an independent
actuaries and consultants. The latest actuarial valuation was
performed by Watson Wyatt as at 31 December 2009 using the
projected unit credit method.

The amount included in the statement of financial position
arising from the obligation of the Group and the Company in
respect of its defined benefit plans are as follows:

REE ¥ YN
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FET FETT FET FETT
Uss’000 Us$'000 Uss‘000 Us$°000
Rt E(FHEE Present value of unfunded
obligations 18,193 10,255 11,009 6,538
KA 7 BEE Net actuarial (losses) gain
C-EIN& not recognised (6,816) (1,055) (2,763 785
e RERAEE Net liability arising from
M E B defined benefit obligation 11,377 9,200 8,246 7,323
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30. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations
are as follows:

rEHE AT

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FET FET FET FET
US$°000 US$'000 US$°000 US$°000
R E ) At beginning of year 10,255 7,718 6,540 5,238
RNEFERB KR Current service cost 1,242 1,114 714 367
R B AR Interest cost 225 194 143 130
BE W= (BX) Actuarial gain 6,471 1,229 3,612 803
REHEAR At end of the reporting period 18,193 10,255 11,009 6,538

RINEERERTOFT

Total amount of expense recognised in the consolidated income

statement:
REE
Group
2009 2008
FETT FETT
USs$’000 Us$’000
AN F AR 7S B AN Current service cost 1,242 1,114
B Interest cost 225 194
REFFRZ Net expense for the year included
(BRERTEHER) in administrative expenses 1,467 1,308
AENEERRR The principal assumptions used for accounting purposes were:
KEBERAKRQF
Group and Company
2009 2008
% %
iR X Discount rate 2.00 2.25
8 AR = B At 1R Expected rate of salary increases 7.00 3.00
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30. EI®AMEME (&)
AERBEFREZEBWOAT ¢

Historical information

30. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

REE
Group
2009 2008 2007 2006
FET FEEE FEEE FEEE
Us$‘000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$:000
AEBMEEIRE  Present value of the defined
benefit obligations 18,193 10,255 7,718 7,627
BB EZ & AE Experience adjustments
arising on plan liabilities (903) 1,815 735 473
KA E
Company
2009 2008 2007 2006
FET FEEE FEEE FEEE
Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$:000
AEBMEEIRE  Present value of the defined
benefit obligations 11,009 6,538 5,342 5,331
BB EZ&EBAE Experience adjustments
arising on plan liabilities (485) 927 551 331
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3.IEERE 31. DEFERRED TAXATION
rEE
Group
2009 2008
FET FET
Us$°000 Us$'000
RE ) At beginning of year 34,469 4,979
FFAGRE W ERA Charge to consolidated income statement 20,931 29,490
R&EER At end of the reporting period 55,400 34,469
EEHEBEEE (BE) 2BA Recognised deferred tax assets (liabilities)
REE
Group
2009 2008

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
FET FEz FZET FZET
Uss$‘000 Us$‘000 Us$:000 Us$'000

MR BT E Accelerated depreciation
allowance — (18,190) — (16,901)

R T 4T B Decelerated depreciation
allowance 1,680 — 1,333 —
TR Withholding tax — (39,335) — (23,100)
EAh Others 3,699 (3,254) 4,046 153
EEFIEEE (B &) Deferred tax assets (liabilities) 5,379 (60,779) 5,379 (39,848)
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RIBOEERBHE - SNEIREFE WL
RPBENIINERECEAESHRE
AIRIR10% BT R B TRIEDL © %
ER_ZTN\F-—A—BREXR &
AR-_ZFTLtHE+-_A=1t—HR&H
RETAI A B AE o i BT B
SRR EEMEERXSERFFE
BB - AIERAEEN R - AEE
BRAMER10% REBRESFE
MEBARR —TELFREMIL RS
] R R D BB D W
FHREENEEHEARE - R-FF
NFE+ZA=+—RH  HRAEEH
J& 2 RIEREREY R T o B 0 A I S B
ARATHRBZEERREE (ZTT
NE:F) o

REBEWRERELEHIBEEERR
% 18 18 40,015,000 7T (ZZEZE N\
£ : 48,276,000 7T) - L HLTEE B
A FAVE A0 2R 2 T 7 Wz o R 75 7
$872,623,000% 7T (2008 : 1,684,000
% Jt) & 11,380,000 Jt (2008 :
3,069,000% 7T ) # % Al B 2010%
201108 -

AERWREEBERABNE - XA
ARNEERYERERZELERAE
EREIE-
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31. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC EIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied
on dividends distributed to foreign investors by the foreign
investment enterprises established in PRC. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
accumulated after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax
rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between PRC and
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries, the applicable rate is 10% and deferred tax liability
is only provided on those parts of post-2007 earnings that are
expected to be distributable in the foreseeable future. At 31
December 2009, there was no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liability (2008: Nil) for taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings from the PRC subsidiaries.

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
tax losses of US$40,015,000 (2008: US$48,276,000), which
can be carried forward against future taxable income. Losses
amounting to US$2,623,000 (2008: US$1,684,000) and
US$11,380,000 (2008: US$3,069,000) will expire in 2010 and
2011 respectively.

There was no assessable profit in Hong Kong for the year. The
Company does not have unrecognised deferred tax assets and
liabilities at the end of reporting period.
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32. B R
ERERNEER 2 EBRITMT

32. TRADE PAYABLES

The ageing analysis of trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

REE ARF

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FET TE7T FET TET
USs$000 Us$000 USs$000 US$'000
0-90H 0 - 90 days 586,944 371,817 2,818 2,728
90H KA E Over 90 days 35,253 32,108 — —
622,197 403,925 2,818 2,728

RN RRA T I E ' E -

The trade payables are denominated in the following

currencies:
A% LN

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FET FZET FET FZET
Uss$‘000 Us$'000 Us$‘000 Us$'000
AR RMB 618,991 401,197 — —
=G Us$ 388 — — —
e New Taiwan dollar 2,818 2,728 2,818 2,728

"d40D DNIQTOH (SANVISI NVINAYD) IADNIL (2373 BEi Sl

127



B2 EMR/AT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

-~
T

J:

128

2009 Annual Report G5

Bk B Kf & Notes to the Financial Statements
“ZTTZAFE+-_A=+—HIFEE For the year ended 31 December 2009

#=

. REXBFEHRE

33. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

2009 2008
FET FZETT
Us$°000 Us$'000
BR B B A Profit before taxation 625,108 452,221
FEER Interest expenses 12,644 31,168
LB WA Interest income (15,579) (17,307)
e Depreciation 196,569 181,666
THAEAEE 2 B Amortisation on lease premium for land 2,048 1,895
BEWEEHBHE Amortisation on intangible assets 2,778 1,968
HEME  HER Loss (Gain) on disposal of property,
Fh2BE (YaE) plant and equipment 2,051 (1,059)
MmE - BERZBEREBE Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment 25,778 15,742
BAABEVNERERBZERE Impairment loss on financial asset at fair
NEeMEEZREBE value through profit or loss 526 =
il NG Share of results of associates (9,550) (7,812)
HEZEAREBEETIRRE Gain on disposal of financial assets at
BREEENSBEEZWZE  fair value through profit or loss — (1,707)
HERB AR 2 s Gain on disposal of interest in a subsidiary (3,285) —
EXZH o 8 Effect on exchange rate changes (8) 263
GEDAFEMZRAD (M) Net repayment from
(advances to) associates 12,761 (24,487)
AHHESHEEZRERBE  Impairment loss on available for
sale financial assets 342 —
TR AR AT ER Recognition of equity-settled
LR P HHE share-based payment 2,280 750
FEZEm Increase in inventories (21,057) (28,912)
JRE Wi B 3% 2 38 Increase in trade receivables (657) (7,612)
AT FRIE R H A R KIE 2 (Increase) Decrease in prepayments
($h0) 8 and other receivables (69,612) 12,565
JE 5 BR 502 38 Increase in trade payables 224,507 46,695
E{‘@Jﬁﬁmlﬁz%‘ m Increase in other payables 114,498 43,441
REFEMNZIEZENCRD) Increase (Decrease) in advance
payments from customers 5,997 (9,550)
H fth 3F 7 B FE S Z0 3B 2 8 4> Decrease in other non-current payables (764) (566)
JERRE TREA Increase in present value of unfunded
BEERBE LM employee benefit obligations 2,177 1,307
REXBREHRS Cash generated from operations 1,109,552 690,669
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34. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 7 November 2008, the Company and Wei Chuan (BVI) Co.,
Ltd. entered into an agreement, pursuant to which Wei Chuan
(BVI) had conditionally agreed to acquire from the Company the
entire equity interest in Hangzhou Wei Chuan Foods Co., Ltd.
("“Hangzhou Wei Chuan”) at a consideration of
RMB73.96million. Hangzhou Wei Chuan is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and principally engaged in the
manufacture and sale of refrigeration products. The disposal
was completed in July 2009.

The carrying amount of the identifiable assets and liabilities of

AHZEREEMT the subsidiary as at the date of disposal are as follows:
2009
FET
USs$’000

HEZFEE : Net assets disposed of:

Y - B R Property, plant and equipment 17,863
rE Inventories 3,126
& U BR 3R Trade receivables 15,069
T8 5 3IE 2 B b B Y 5K IR Prepayments and other receivables 6,400
RITEBRRAS Bank balances and cash 4,577
J& 5 BR 5K Trade payables (6,418)
H b BT IR Other payables (18,153)
EERBE Interest-bearing borrowings (13,053)
Bi1E Taxation (253)
BEFE Net assets value 9,158
HERCERFEESR Realisation of exchange reserve upon disposal (1,600)
HE®R s —RBFHEEZSR Realisation of general reserve upon disposal (8)
HE - B ARz W Gain on disposal of interest in a subsidiary 3,285
BRECGIREREXMN) Total consideration, satisfied by cash consideration 10,835
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M. HE-—BHBELR (&) 34. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)
EHLE—RHMNBAR R RES Analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of
EEMFRADN disposal of a subsidiary:

2009

FET

US$’000

RERE Cash consideration 10,835
PEHEZRERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents disposed (4,577)
ReRASEEYZFRA Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents 6,258

BREMRAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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35. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

course of the Group’s business.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group entered into
the following material related party transactions in the ordinary

2009 2008
DT FET
Us$’000 Us$'000
MTRIAMZRAHFEER Salaries and other short-term
HtEHESREN : employee benefits paid to:
FEEEAR Key management personnel,
WA BIEHFE0 excluding amounts paid to the
FritEzEEME Company'’s directors as
disclosed in note 10 3,232 2,327
M3 ARBEEM: Purchases of goods from:
RN Associates 261,802 294,412
ZIKQT%:FIEEﬁﬁ Company under common control
PRl 2 &~ by a substantial shareholder
of the Company — 6,196
AARBETLEBRRE 2 Holding companies of a minority
i /N shareholder of subsidiaries of
the Company 2,664 1,637
mEEATDHEMNBAT  Proceed from the disposal of
ZFBESE a subsidiary to an associate 10,835 —

RZZBZENFF+ZRA=+—H &2

AlZEERNRIRBAARE T LEK
RERz ARMAEERERITEE
2 R 5D B A 4,393,000 T &
1,775,000€ 7T - RAFEHEE B

BERBREBEEER -

As of 31 December 2008, an associate and the holding
companies of a minority shareholder of subsidiaries of the
Company had provided guarantees provided to the Group’s
bankers for US$4,393,000 and US$1,775,000 respectively for
securing banking facilities granted to the Group. No such

guarantee was obtained at the end of reporting period.
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BE_

36.

EXRER

AEEEREANBREREAEE
BEARERLE  EMRKRREHD®R
REMANSEEEERENES -

AEEERABEELRRERER
(BRE&EER)  BEBEL XN
BHEARNFRE GFEERINERR
e RBACFEM EREARFEEA
FEhER 2R URGEERE

36. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders.

The Group monitors its capital, which comprises all equity
components, using a gearing ratio which is calculated on the
basis of net debt (interest bearing borrowings net of cash and
cash equivalents) as a ratio of the equity attributable to owners

of the Company as disclosed in the consolidated statement of

FARE  BEEHLEHBRER X changes in equity. The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at the end
RMEBARDOT : of the reporting period were as follows:
AEH PN
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
AT BT AT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
EERBE Interest bearing borrowings 335,070 567,081 85,500 84,000
B RE R Less: Cash and cash
REED equivalents (520,189) (384,964) (6,312) (10,845)
FIREEIR Net (cash) debt (185,119) 182,117 79,188 73,155
1B Total equity 1,462,644 | 1,207,203 512,683 440,432
BEEELE Gearing ratio -12.66% 15.09% 15.45% 16.61%

AEBERBEBRRNKE - BBE
@ZMEﬁHEi‘%&iMHx%TEﬁ : 5351@
IRERS - OERERBETHE B
B E R REEERRERE - It
S AEEBEEEN S LRITHE
MK ARNEBEARAXRERER
g AEBUHEEBRE_TTNF
_ﬁ ©

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance and makes adjustments to capital structure
according to changes in economic conditions for achieving its
objectives through payment of dividends, share repurchase and
issue of new debt. Changing of borrowing rate in the market,
future capital expenditures and investment opportunities are
taken into consideration. The Group’s strategy remains
unchanged from that of 2008.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s financial instruments expose it to foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of
Directors generally adopts conservative strategies on its risks
management and limits the Group’s exposure to these risks to a
minimum. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:

Foreign currency risk

The majority of the subsidiaries of the Group are operated in
the PRC and most of their transactions are denominated in
RMB. The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily
through capital expenditures, purchases, bank balances,
borrowings, and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss that are denominated in currency other than the functional

currency of the subsidiaries.

The exchange rate of RMB against US$ is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by
the PRC government. The Group did not has significant
exposure to foreign exchange risk and has not hedged its
foreign exchange risk because the subsidiaries of the Group
mainly earn their profits in RMB and the value of RMB has been
appreciating against USD.

Details of the Group’s bank balances and borrowings
denominated in RMB, USD and EURO as at 31 December 2008
and 2009 are set out in notes 25 and 29 respectively.

At the end of the reporting period, if the exchange rates of
RMB/US$ and RMB/EUR had strengthened/ weakened by 5%
with all other variables held constant, the Group’s profit for the
year and retained profits would have been US$14,550,000
(2008: US$15,188,000) higher / lower.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term borrowings with
floating interest rates. The Group's policy is to manage its
interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable rate debts. The
Group has not hedged its cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk. The Group’s strategy is to maintain an appropriate
proportion between borrowings at fixed interest rates and
floating interest rates, in consideration of economic
atmosphere and the strategies of the Group.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been 10
(2008: 10) basis point higher / lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year and retained
profits would decrease / increase by US$264,000 (2008:
US$216,000).

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to pledged bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalent, trade and other receivables.
Substantially all of the Group’s and the Company’s pledged
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents were deposited in
the creditworthy global financial institutions and state-
controlled financial institutions in the PRC, which management
consider they are without significant credit risk. Specific policy
and procedures have been decided by management to assess
the credit risk of trade (note 23) and other receivable. Individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no
significant concentrations of credit risk. The maximum exposure
to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the statement of financial position.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group's objectives when managing liquidity risk are to
maintain sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
credit facilities to the Group. Also, the Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements,
in particular relating to capital expenditure and repayments of
debts. At the end of the reporting period, the Board of
Directors expected that the Group had no significant liquidity
risk in the near future. Details of the preparation of financial
statements on a going concern basis are set out in note 2.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the
end of the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted
payments are summarised below:

r&
Group
—FEE WENLLE
—FRy® EBEMER EEFER
BEERER Morethan1 More than 2
Within 1 year year but less years but less &t
or on demand than 2 years than 5 years Total
FET FET FET FET
USs$000 USs$000 Us$000 US$'000
R-ZENE At 31 December 2009
+t=A=+-H
JIE 1 B & 1 B ZUA Due to associates 47,075 — — 47,075
JE 1 BR 3R Trade payables 622,197 — — 622,197
H h JE 13 5B Other payables 405,445 — — 405,445
BEREE Interest-bearing borrowings 220,411 72,947 45,627 338,985
HibIEmEEMFIE  Other non-current payables 765 765 766 2,296
1,295,893 73,712 46,393 1,415,998
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3. 2MRAEREER &) 37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

RBELRER (&) Liquidity risk (Continued)
F&HE
Group
—FH0E WMEUELE
—FRA%H BEWEFER ERER
BEREHR More than1 More than 2
Within 1 year year but less years but less &%
or on demand than 2 years than 5 years Total
FET FET FET FET
US$'000 US$°000 Us$'000 US$°000
R-ZEZBNF At 31 December 2008
+=-—A=+—8
JE B = A AR Due to associates 62,546 — — 62,546
JE 1+ BR 3R Trade payables 403,925 — — 403,925
H & FE Other payables 351,710 — = 351,710
BEREEE Interest-bearing borrowings 461,239 68,962 77,732 607,933
HiIERBENFIE  Other non-current payables 765 765 765 2,295
1,280,185 69,727 78,497 1,428,409
NN
Company
—FH0LE WEULEE
a —FRy® BEMEAR EEER
S BEERER Morethan1 More than 2
% Within 1 year year but less years but less &t
9' or on demand than 2 years than 5 years Total
z FET FET FET FET
E Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
s R-ZZBENE At 31 December 2009
3 +=A=+-8
§ JE 15 B /B8 & R] 538 Due to subsidiaries 102,711 — — 102,711
':; JE 15 BR 3R Trade payables 2,818 — — 2,818
g H fth & A R IE Other payables 765 — — 765
3 BERE Interest-bearing borrowings 21,390 20,737 45,627 87,754
,é, 127,684 20,737 45,627 194,048
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3. 2MBEREE &) 37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

RBESRR (&) Liquidity risk (Continued)
YN
Company
—F0E WENLLE
—FRA%H BEWEFER ERER
BERER Morethan 1 More than 2
Within 1 year year but less years but less &%
or on demand than 2 years than 5 years Total
FET FET FET FET
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
R-ZETN\F At 31 December 2008
+=-—R=+-—8H
J& 1< B /& 22 B 3RIE Due to subsidiaries 97,392 — — 97,392
JE 11 Bk & & R SRR Due to associates 179 — — 179
JE 1 BR 3R Trade payables 2,728 — — 2,728
H A JE 13 5B Other payables 8,918 — — 8,918
EREE Interest-bearing borrowings 95,958 11,023 = 106,981
205,175 11,023 — 216,198
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3. 2MEREE &) 37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
AREE Fair value
(a) AAFEEREBENESHBHITA (a) Financial instruments carried at fair value

TREJNEEERBEBRA & The following table presents the carrying value of financial

(BB BREERDE7R 2R/ instruments measured at fair value at the end of the

TH BEIFEENAFER reporting period across the three levels of the fair value

ERFHEN=EEFRF - LAF hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments:

BEFENEM T A ZRBE Disclosures, with the fair value of each financial instrument

B BEEIBRNEMIAZA categorised in its entirely based on the lowest level of input

FEEE2BENDENE ANKESE that is significant to that fair value measurement. The levels

& EEBAEHAFEBEFTE=E are defined as follows:

EEE c BEERFRBOT :

— F1F(ZaEH)  ARE — Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
EEMmZHERSE T AN quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
WECREAB)AELATE identical financial instrument
&

— F2f - MAEERM ST E — Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in
PemTENRE A active markets for similar financial instruments, or
EEHALHEFEIBEEER using valuation techniques in which all significant
AEBEEmMEHEBENHER inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable
fit - TEAFEE market data

— FIFZ(ZEER) : FAF — Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
o] &8 22 8 A 30 3F B 0 Al B 52 valuation techniques in which any significant input is
MEBEHEEBENHERNTER not based on observable market data
FEE
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair value (Continued)

AEBRAEDF
Group and Company
A 2 A3 st
2009 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FETT FET FET TET
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
RARBEE Financial assets at
BEanlREEZ fair value through
Mg EE profit or loss
— 8B ET 2 - Equity investments,
BHEEE listed overseas 3,024 — — 3,024
—XTEBES - US$ currency fund — 1,002 — 1,002
3,024 1,002 — 4,026

FRREBEBERINERF2 2 HE
B3 o

(b) RAARBEMINIRNERTAAR
EfE

EER/AKERARFRICRITAYZ
A 1B DA B 2N sk B S P AN 51 B, SR
20094 K 2008F 12A31BZ A B
BEXJRERNER -

During the reporting period, there were no transfers between

instruments in Level 1 and Level 2.

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair

value

In the opinion of the directors, the carrying amounts of the

Group's and the Company’s financial instruments carried at cost

or amortised cost are not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 December 2009 and 2008.

"d40D DNIQTOH (SANVISI NVINAYD) IADNIL (=731 E 5 S

139



2009 Annual Report G5

BE B Mt 3 Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZZAFE+_-_A=1+—HIEE For the year ended 31 December 2009
38. A& E 38. COMMITMENTS
(a) BREE (a) Capital commitments
rEH
Group
2009 2008
FETT FETT
US$’000 Us$'000
EETXEREE Contracted but not provided for 168,497 86,152
(b) HERNEE (b) Commitments under operating leases
REEER - BREBETAHEE 2L At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
A NREBRRFEHRERNK future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
BETIRINT operating leases, which are payable as follows:
rEE
Group
2009 2008
FETT FETT
US$’000 Us$'000
—F R Within one year 12,950 13,249
REZFEZFRAFER Inthe second to
(RIEERMF) fifth years inclusive 19,282 24,913
a AFLAE After five years 5,920 2,650
o
o
E 38,152 40,812
2'
2 30.J_EEE 39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
=2
<
= XA F]
§ Company
>
S 2009 2008
5 FET FZET
=2
= Us$‘000 Us$'000
E BRYHMBAREE ZEIR  Guarantees for credit facilities granted
g to subsidiaries 248,059 207,610
R
5
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40. EEH B AT
FEMBARARFIMT :

L

Name

REEHEARRRERAA
Tianjin Tingyi International Food Co., Ltd.

BMNE&RAERAT
Guangzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.

MMERRmBRAR
Hangzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.

EEE (M) FERRERAF
Master Kong (Hangzhou)
Convenient Food Co., Ltd.

EERRRAMBRAHA
Chongging Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.

RHEERRMARD A
Shenyang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd

RERARMARAA
Wuhan Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.

AREHRmERAR
Xian Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.
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40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

EMRL/ HmELR/
EEHY ERARA JE1h
Place of Registered Rt il
incorporation capital / issued Proportion of TEER
/ operation share capital ~ ownership interest Principal activity
¢ %
Directly  Indirectly

5 US$72,000,000 100% — BERHEEAEA
PRC Manufacture and

sale of instant noodles
i US$31,000,000 - 100% HERKEHFEA
PRC Manufacture and

sale of instant noodles
i US$46,600,000/ — 100% HERBELFA
PRC 1US$39,000,000 Manufacture and

sale of instant noodles
i U5$20,000,000 - 100% HERBEHFEA
PRC Manufacture and

sale of instant noodles
H US$22,000,000 — 100% HERHEEHEE
PRC Manufacture and

sale of instant noodles
i US$17,000,000 = 100% BERBEAFR
PRC Manufacture and

sale of instant noodles
H US$17,800,000 — 100% HERHEEHEE
PRC Manufacture and

sale of instant noodles
i US$17,000,000 — 100% HERBELFA
PRC Manufacture and

sale of instant noodles
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HE-ZT

1]

Name

EEERZRM NG|
Qingdao Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.

RRERRRmERAA
Harbin Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.

REERRRERA
Fujian Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.

*

MERARMARAT
Xinjiang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.

*

HREERmARAR
Nanling Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.

RERNERARNARAT

Master Kong (Taiwan) Foods Co., Ltd.

RBERREMARAT
Cheng Du Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.

AE-RERMERAF
Hebei Yi Wan Xiang Foods Co., Ltd.

NEFE+=-_A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2009

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

EMRL/ gmER/
EENY ERORA
Place of Registered
incorporation capital / issued
/ operation share capital
H US$5,000,000
PRC
HE US$11,200,000
PRC
i US$4,500,000
PRC
i US$3,000,000
PRC
i US$14,000,000/
PRC US$10,600,000
=) 50,000,000 3 it
Taiwan FAENTS10
50,000,000
ordinary shares of
NT$10 each/ NT$500,000,000
H US$17,000,000
PRC
HE RMB187,500,000
PRC

s
Rt il
Proportion of
ownership interest
E# [E3
Directly  Indirectly

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

100% =

= 100%

= 100%

TEER

Principal activity

HERBEENFR
Manufacture and
sale of instant noodles

BEREE R
Manufacture and
sale of instant noodles

HEREEAER
Manufacture and
sale of instant noodles

BEREE R
Manufacture and
sale of instant noodles

HEREE AR
Manufacture and
sale of instant noodles

HEREERFER
Manufacture and
sale of instant noodles

HEREERFER
Manufacture and
sale of instant noodles

HEREE AR
Manufacture and
sale of instant noodles



40. T EMB LT (8)

L

Name

FEHERRAERDA
Master Kong (Kunming)
Convenient Food Co., Ltd.

*REE(ER) AERR AT
Master Kong (Shenyang)
Convenient Food Co., Ltd.
BHEREBRAA

Fumanduo Investment Co., Ltd.

CEERRSRRERAT
Huaian Fumanduo Food Co., Ltd.

BEUBRZRMERAH

Meishan Fumanduo Food Co., Ltd.

FRPBREZERERAH

Changsha Fumanduo Food Co., Ltd.

*BHERSRRERAT

Zhengzhou Fumanduo Food Co., Ltd.

FENERZRERERAR
Lanzhou Fumanduo Food Co., Ltd.

*ERRBSRMARAHA

Chongging Fumanduo Food Co., Ltd.

*RERRZRRERAR

Xianyang Fumanduo Food Co., Ltd.
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40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

gAY/ gMmELR/
EEHY ERTRA s
Place of Registered B L A
incorporation capital / issued Proportion of TEEK
/ operation share capital  ownership interest Principal activity
B B
Directly  Indirectly

i US$3,000,000 - 100% HERBEHFEA
PRC Manufacture and

sale of instant noodles
# US$6,000,000 — 100% HEREEHEE
PRC Manufacturing and

sale of instant noodles
i US$30,000,000 — 100% HAER
PRC Investment holding
i US$5,000,000 — 100% HERBEHFA
PRC Manufacturing and

sale of instant noodles
# US$5,000,000 — 100% HEREEHEE
PRC Manufacturing and

sale of instant noodles
i US$5,000,000 — 100% HERBEHFA
PRC Manufacturing and

sale of instant noodles
i US$5,000,000 - 100% HERBEHFEA
PRC Manufacturing and

sale of instant noodles
i US$5,000,000 — 100% HERBELFEA
PRC Manufacturing and

sale of instant noodles
i US$5,000,000 - 100% HERKEHFA
PRC Manufacturing and

sale of instant noodles
f US$5,000,000 — 100% HEREEHEE
PRC Manufacturing and

sale of instant noodles
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HE-ZT

40. T EMB LT ()

1]

Name

FHBRRSRREBRAH
Xinjiang Fumanduo Food Co., Ltd.

L RRZER AT
Hebei Fumanduo Food Co., Ltd.

EEERSRmERAH
Jinan Fumanduo Food Co., Ltd.

FRERMNSZRRAERAT
Dongguan Fumanduo Food Co., Ltd.

FABEFERABVIER A
Master Kong Instant Foods (BVI) Co., Ltd

FRENE R B (BVI)E R A ]
Master Kong Bakery (BVI) Co., Ltd.

NEFE+=-_A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2009

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

HERL/
EXnE
Place of
incorporation
/ operation

TE
PRC

Gl
PRC

!
PRC

HE
PRC

HE
PRC

AERAES
British Virgin Islands

("BVI")

ABRARS
BV

HfEx,/
BETRA
Registered
capital / issued
share capital

US$3,000,000

US$5,000,000

US$3,000,000

US$5,000,000

US$5,000,000

50,000% i fix
BRUSH

50,000 ordinary shares
at US$1 each/ US$1

50,000 i &
FRRUSST

50,000 ordinary shares
at US$1 each/ US$1

s
Rt il
Proportion of
ownership interest

EE [E3
Directly  Indirectly
— 100%

— 100%

= 100%

— 100%

— 100%
100% —
100% =

TEER

Principal activity

HERBEENFR
Manufacturing and
sale of instant noodles

BEREE R
Manufacturing and
sale of instant noodles

HEREEAER
Manufacturing and
sale of instant noodles

BERHEE R
Manufacturing and
sale of instant noodles

HEREEHER
Manufacturing and
sale of instant noodles

REERK

Investment holding

RAER

Investment holding



40. T EMB LT (8)

L

Name

KEEARRERAH
Tianjin Kameda Food Co., Ltd.

XEERRmERAF
Tianjin Tingyuan Food Co., Ltd.

%Mﬁlﬁm NG

Guangzhou Tlngyuan Food Co., Ltd.

MNERRmERAH

Hangzhou Ting Yuan Food Co., Ltd.

RAIESREBV)ERA A

Master Kong Beverages (BVI) Co., Ltd

REERRERERAA

Tingyi-Asahi Beverages Holding Co., Ltd.

*RRERRMEBAF
Tianjin Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.

ENRER R 3N

Guangzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.

* REVE (BM) RmAR AR

EMERL/
EXnE
Place of
incorporation
/ operation

TE
PRC

il
PRC

!
PRC

T
PRC

RBRAES
BVI

it

Cayman Islands

G
PRC

hE
PRC

PE

Master Kong (Guangzhou) Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC
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HMEx/
BETRA
Registered
capital / issued
share capital

US$6,000,000

US$37,000,000

US$22,000,000

US$18,400,000

50,000 i &

BRRUSST

50,000 ordinary shares

of US$1 each/ US$50,000

50,000 i

FRRUSH

50,000 ordinary shares

of US$1 each/ US$10,001

US$60,840,000,
US$32,340,000

US$20,000,000

US$14,500,000

ik
Bt il
Proportion of
ownership interest
E# E3
Directly  Indirectly

= 50%

= 100%

100% =

= 100%

100% =

= 50.01%

= 50.01%

= 50.01%

= 50.01%

“EZNF+_A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2009

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

TEER

Principal activity

HEREEABER
Manufacture and
sale of rice crackers

HEREERNER
Manufacture and
sale of bakery products

RERHERSER
Manufacture and
sale of bakery products

HEREERNER
Manufacture and
sale of bakery products

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

HERFESm
Manufacture and
sale of beverages

RERHER D
Manufacture and
sale of beverages

EREERS
Manufacture and
sale of beverages
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Bk B Kf & Notes to the Financial Statements
HE_ZZNF+-_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2009

40. T EMB LT ()

1]

Name

CMERRR

Hangzhou ngjm Food Co., Ltd.

* REE (M) R BRAF
Master Kong (Hangzhou) Beverage Co., Ltd

NS

BRERREARAF

Xi'an Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.

*RERRRMAERAH

Wuhan Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.

EFERRM ¥/

Chongaing Tingjin Food Co., Ltd

EEEEZRR

Shenyang Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.

BREERRM ¥/

Qingdao Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.

NG

AT

NG

BRERRRARAF

Fujian Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.

*REAEEERR

fR/

NGl
Harbin Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.

HERL/
EXnE
Place of
incorporation
/ operation

TE
PRC

HE
PRC

!
PRC

HE
PRC

il
PRC

G
PRC

il
PRC

!
PRC

HE
PRC

HfEx,/
BETRA
Registered

capital / issued

share capital

US$38,100,000

US$21,350,000

US$12,000,000

US$31,000,000

US$24,000,000

US$8,500,000

US$15,000,000

US$13,700,000

US$20,000,000/
US$13,614,836

s
Rt il
Proportion of
ownership interest

EE [E3
Directly  Indirectly

= 50.01%

= 50.01%

= 50.01%

= 50.01%

= 50.01%

= 50.01%

= 50.01%

= 50.01%

= 50.01%

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

TEER

Principal activity

RERHERD
Manufacture and
sale of beverages

HEREERD
Manufacture and
sale of beverages

RERHERD
Manufacture and
sale of beverages

HEREERm
Manufacture and
sale of beverages

RERHERD
Manufacture and
sale of beverages

HERHERm
Manufacture and
sale of beverages

HERFEERm
Manufacture and
sale of beverages

RERHERD
Manufacture and
sale of beverages

HERHEERm
Manufacture and
sale of beverages



40. T EMB LT (8)

L

Name

*HERRRRARAA
Xinjiang Tingjin Food
Co., Ltd.

*BREERRMBRAA
Kunming Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.

*BNERRMERAF
Zhengzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd

*RMNERRRARLA
Lan Zhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.

FEDE (B KmARAH

Master Kong (Shenyang) Beverage Co. Ltd.

*EEE (AR KnERAF

Master Kong (Xi'an) Beverage Co., Ltd

* REVE (RR) KA RAF

Master Kong (Tianjin) Beverage Co., Ltd

CHREERGERAH
Nanjing Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.

*EEE(EH) RBLKRERAA

Master Kong (Jilin) The

Changbai Mountain Beverage Co., Ltd.

EMERL/
EXnE
Place of
incorporation
/ operation

G
PRC

G
PRC

G
PRC

i
PRC

G
PRC

i1
PRC

i
PRC

G
PRC

i
PRC

2009 Annual Report 4

B B Kt 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

HMEx/
BETRA
Registered
capital / issued
share capital

US$10,000,000/
US$6,000,000

US$12,000,000/
US$9,800,000

US$24,000,000/
US$22,800,000

US$16,000,000

US$11,200,000

US$15,500,000

US$28,500,000

US$30,500,000

US$5,000,000

US$5,000,000

JE4k
el

Proportion of

ownership interest

E& B

Directly  Indirectly

= 50.01%

= 50.01%

= 50.01%

= 50.01%

= 50.01%

= 50.01%

= 50.01%

= 50.01%

= 50.01%

BE_ZZNF+-_A=1+—HLFE For the year ended 31 December 2009

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

TEER

Principal activity

RERHERD
Manufacture and
sale of beverages

HERHEERm
Manufacture and
sale of beverages

RERHER D
Manufacture and
sale of beverages

HERHEERm
Manufacture and
sale of beverages

RERHERD
Manufacture and
sale of beverages

HERHFEAm
Manufacture and
sale of beverages

HERFEER D
Manufacture and
sale of beverages

RERHERD
Manufacture and
sale of beverages

HERHEERm
Manufacture and
sale of beverages
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HE_ZZNF+-_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2009

40. TENB AR (&) 40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

HERL/ dmEgx/
EXnE BETRA 1k
Place of Registered g 1d]
4 incorporation capital / issued Proportion of TEEK
Name / operation share capital  ownership interest Principal activity
E# [E3
Directly  Indirectly
*HNERRRERAR i US$28,500,000 —  5001% RERHEHR
Yangzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and
sale of beverages
*REEWMN) TERRRERAF i US$12,000,000/ - 5001% HARRERLE
Master Kong (Hangzhou) PRC US$1,800,029 Not yet commenced business
Qiandaohu Beverages Co., Ltd.
*BENERRARERAT G US$59,300,000/ —  5001% HERHERR
Guangzhou Tingjin PRC US$34,260,000 Manufacture and
Beverage Co., Ltd. sale of beverages
*RERERRERAA G US$12,000,000 —  5001% HERHEHKD
Tianjin Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd PRC Manufacture and
sale of beverages
*REE (RE) RmEARAA E US$10,500,000 —  5001% HERHERMD
Master Kong (Dalian) Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and
sale of beverages
g' *RABRRARERAR G US$12,000,000/ —  5001% HERHEHRD
; Chengdu Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC US$2,646,933 Manufacture and
E sale of beverages
£
2 *REOEB(SEAE) KmBRAT E US$12,000,000/ —  5001% HERHERMD
% Master Kong (Wulumugi) Beverage PRC US$2,400,000 Manufacture and
ﬁ Co., Ltd. sale of beverages
<
§ *HERRRARERAR E US$10,000,000/ —  5001% RAFRREBEE
g’ Nanchang Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Us$o Not yet commenced business
O
E K2 (ZB)ARZXBSERLA ke US$2,100,000 100% —  BERHENEHM
S Wei Chuan (Anji) Dairy Farm Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and
E sale of milk products
&
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40. TENB AT (8) 40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
HRmRL/ HRmER/
EEHY BERATRA 1k
Place of Registered B L A
4 incorporation capital / issued Proportion of TEEK
Name / operation share capital  ownership interest Principal activity
EE 3F:
Directly  Indirectly
RERERBFEEERAA i US$11,000,000 51% —  RERHERR
Tianjin Ting Fung Starch PRC SRERNRAR R
Development Co., Ltd. Manufacture and

sale of modified potato
starch and seasoning flavours

Ea(RERXS) BEERAR RERLEE 50,000% &% 100% — AEE/EEAE
Tingyi (V1) Int'l Co., Ltd. BVI FHRUSST Purchasing and sales
50,000 ordinary shares agent for the Group

of US$1 each/ US$50,000

RiE(BE)EHERAA Bk HK$ 10,000/ HK$2 100% — FREZERRERES
Master Kong (HK) Trading Company Limited HK Agent and trading of

products for the Group
BCBRARARRBRAR G US$8,600,000 100% —  BERBERKEX
Xinghua Dinfang Dehydrate Foods Co., Ltd.  PRC Manufacture and

sale of dehydrated vegetables

AEBGRAARAF G US$2,100,000 100% —  REREERELEN
Tian Jin Ting Jia Machinery Co., Ltd. PRC Installation and maintenance
of plant and machinery

AERERABRAF G US$200,000 100% —  RUEERH
Tianjin Tingyu Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC Provision of
management services
RERENZERBRAA ik US$210,000 100% — RUEVEEER
Tianjin Tingquan Properties PRC 1A 2 B R RE
Management Co., Ltd. Provision of property

management and related
onsultancy services
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HE_ZZNF+-_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2009

40. TEMBRF (&

1]

Name

RERREHEREARAA
Tianjin Dingya Property
Development Co., Ltd.

CENEREEHEREERA
Guangzhou Dingya Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.

RERHARIRBEAARAF

Tianjin Tingxin International

Engineering Consultant Co., Ltd.

BEBVIAERAT
Tingtong (BVI) Limited

BE (eS8 ERERAA
Tingtong (Cayman Islands)
Holding Corp.

* LERBNRBRAR

Shanghai Tingtong Logistics Co., Ltd

*ARBERNRERAF

Beijing Ting Tong Logistics Co., Ltd.

*ENRANRERAR

Guangzhou Ting Tong Logistics Co., Ltd.

EERANRERAR

Shenyang Ting Tong Logistics Co., Ltd.

HERL/
EXnE
Place of
incorporation
/ operation

TE
PRC

!
PRC

!
PRC

RERRES
BVI

it

Cayman Islands

!
PRC

!
PRC

!
PRC

!
PRC

HfEx,/
BETRA
Registered
capital / issued
share capital

US$2,100,000

RMB16,400,000

US$1,700,000

50,000% i@ &
FiRUSSH

50,000 ordinary shares
of US$1 each/ US$1,000

15,000,000 i f&
BRUSH
15,000,000 ordinary
shares of US$1 each/
US$2,118,334

US$5,000,000

US$500,000

US$300,000

US$300,000

s
Rt il
Proportion of
ownership interest

EE [E3
Directly  Indirectly
100% —
38% 62%
100% =
100% —
— 50.01%

— 50.01%

= 50.01%

= 50.01%

— 50.01%

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

TEER

Principal activity

MERE

Property development

ES &

Property development

RETIRERRARRY
Provision of engineering related
consultancy and
research service

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REXEEARA
MR
Logistics services
REMR RS
Logistics services
REMR RS
Logistics services
REDRR

Logistics services



40. T EMB LT (8)

L

Name

EFRANARERAR

Chongaing Ting Tong Logistics Co., Ltd.

RERHERRA

Kon Yuan Corporation
RRERNHARRA
Kon Chuan Corporation

FERENERAH

Kon Jun Corporation

* REMBRARAGZEMATIEGE

£

EMERL/
EXnE
Place of
incorporation
/ operation

TE
PRC

AR
EN

Taiwan

Lo gk
EN

Taiwan

o
i
7

HiANEE R EEAZHERRHGK

YREMAEZEIIEEE -
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HMEx/
BETRA
Registered
capital / issued
share capital

US$300,000

NT$110,000,000

NT$96,000,000

NT$110,000,000

ik
Bt il
Proportion of
ownership interest

EE E3
Directly  Indirectly
— 50.01%
100% —
100% —
100% —

BE_ZZNF+-_A=1+—HLFE For the year ended 31 December 2009

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

TEER

Principal activity

RRDRRE

Logistics services

REERK

Investment holding

REERK

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

*  These subsidiaries are registered as Sino-foreign equity joint

venture companies.

The other subsidiaries in the PRC are established and registered

as wholly-owned foreign enterprises.
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Audited Financial Statements
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
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MAZARS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the members of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability}

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group™) set out on pages 3 to 64, which comprise the
consolidated and Company’s statement of financial position as at 31 December 2009, and the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the content of this report. We conducted or audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Group’s preparation and true and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order fo design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Mazars CPA LIMiTED Page 1 of 64

BiEgumsymsRan Pre AP
42ND FLoog, CENTRAL PLaza, 18 HARBOUR Roap, WanchAL, HONG Kong r@%ﬁ E,y "
BEREANE R TE NS

TeL: {852) 2909 5555 - Fax: (852) 2810 0032 - info@mazars,com.hk - wwv.mazars.corm.hk THOEPENDENT FIRMS



Independent Auditor’s Report

To the members of

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosute requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Neess

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 22 March 2010

Chan Chi Ming Andy
Practising Certificate number: P05132
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

Consolidated Income Statement
Year ended 31 December 2009

Turnover and revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other net income
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses
Finance costs

Share of results of associates
Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Profit for the year
Earnings per share

Basic
Diluted

2009 2008
Note Us$’000 Uss 000
6 5,081,113 4,272,053
(3,321,764) (2,897,449)
1,759,349 1,374,604
8 79,913 82,427
(1,032,759 (826,651)
(96,651) (86,398)
(81,630) (68,405)
9 (12,644) (31,168)
9,550 7,812
9 625,108 452,221
11 {124,613) (90,185)
500,495 362,036
383,207 260,404
117,288 101,632
500,495 362,036
14
US6.86 cents US4.66 cents

US6.85 cents

_USd.S6cents
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
US$’000 Uss'ao0
Profit for the year 500,495 362,036
Other comprehensive income
Net gains recognised directly in equity
Exchange translation difference 1,731 90,277
Total comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) 502,226 452,313
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company 384,941 331,114
Non-controlling interests 117,285 121,199
502,226 452,313

Page 4 of 64



Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Al 31 December 2009

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assels

Interests in associales

Prepaid lease payments
Available-for-sale [inancial assets
Deferred tax assets

Curren{ assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
luventorics

Trade receivables _

Prepayments and otfier receivables

Pledged bank deposits

Bauk balances and cash

Total assels

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and reserves

Issued capital

Reserves

Total capital and reserves attributable (o
owners of the Company

Non-conirolling inferests

Total equily

Non-current liabilities

Long-term interest-bearing borrowings
Other non-current payables

Employee benefit obligations
Doferred tax liabilities

Page 5 of 64

Nore

i3
]
18
19
2{)
H

21
22
23

20
27

30
3

2009 2008
USS* 000 LSS 000
2,216,638 1,974,445
6,955 9,733
61,892 68,005
88,803 81,308
3,408 3,760
5,379 5,379
2,383,075 2,142,720
4,026 550
212,923 194,904
115,591 129,944
171,889 108,434
9,358 4,889
510,831 380,075
1,024,618 818,796
3,407,693 2961516
27,934 27,934
1,434,710 1,179,269
1,462,644 1,207,203
446,420 331,435
1,909,064 1,538,638
116,983 135,852
1,531 2,205
11,377 9,200
60,779 39,848
190,670 187,195




‘Tingyi (Caynian Islands) Holding Corp.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31 December 2009

Current liabilitics

Trade payables

Other payables

Current portion of interest-bearing borrowings
Advance paymenis from customers

Taxation

Total Habilitics

Tota! equity and linbitities

Net currend linbilities

Total assets less current linhilities

Approved and authorised for issue by the Bogrd of Directors on 22 March 2010

Director

Page 6 of 64

Note

32

24

2009 2008
Uss' o0 USS'000
622,197 403,925
406,210 352,475
218,087 431229

42,497 36,483
18,968 11,571
1,307,959 1,235,683
1,498,629 1,422,878

3,407,693

{283,341)
R ]

2,099,734
e

2,961,516
s e——

(416,887)
O

1,725,833
sy

A

Direcitor ( /



Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

Statement of Financial Position
At 31 December 2009

ASSETS

Non-currént assets

Property, plant and equipment
Interests in subsidiaries

Interests in assoclaies
Available-for-sale linancial assets

Current assets

Financial assets al fair value through profit or foss
Prepayments and other receivables

Bank balances and cash

Total assets

FEQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and rescryves
Issued capital
Reserves

Total equity
Non-curvent liabilities

Long-term interest-bearing borrowings
Employee benetit obligations

Pape 7 ol 64

Note

I3
17
18
20

21

26
27

29

2009 2008
Uss'ene  USS'000
131 222
533,251 459,034
62,601 67,415
2,712 3,028
598,695 529 699
4,026 24
979 2,633
6,312 10,845
11,317 13,702
610,012 543,401
27,934 27,934
484,749 412,498
512,683 140,432
65,000 3,500
8,246 732
73,246 12,823




Tingyi (Cayman Istands) Holding Corp.

Statement of Financial Position
Al 31 Decénber 2009

Current Habilities

Trade payables

Other payables

Ctirrent portion of nteresl-béaring borrowings

Total liabilitics

Total cquity and liabilities
flrat)

Net carvent labilities

Total asscls less current fabilitles

Approved and authovised for isswe by the Board of Diveclors on 22 March 2010

P

Director

Page 8 of 64

2009 2008
USsa60 USs 000

2,818 2,728
765 8,018
20,500 78,500
24,083 90,146

97329 102,969

¢10,012 543 401

12,766 (76,444

585,929 453,255
T Yo O RS

" Director

A M



Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Year ended 31 December 2009

At 1 January 2008

Total cemprehensive
ineome

Transfer to general reserve

Share repurchase in 2008

Recognition of equity-
seitled share-based
payment reserve

2007 final dividend paid
2007 special dividend paid

At 31 December 2008

At I January 2009

Total comprehensive
income

Transfer to general reserve

Recognition of equity-
sefiled share-based
payment reserve

Realisation of reserve upon
dispasal of a subsidiary

2008 final dividend paid

At 31 December 2009

Atiributable to Owners of the Company

Share-
Capital Exchange based
Tssued redemption Share  translation General payment  Retained
capital reserve premium reserve reserve reserve prefits
Uss'a00 Uss'an Uss 060 US3 G0 USs 600 USS'000  USS'008
27,943 36 332,478 93,124 135,961 - 438,119
- - - 70,710 - - 260404
- N - 41,594 - (41,594}
®) 9 (1,986) - - - B
- - - - - 750 -
- - - - - - (90,537)
- - - - - - (59,799
27,834 45 330,492 163,834 171,555 750 506,593
27,934 45 330,492 163,834 177,555 750 506,593
- - - 1,734 - - 383207
- - - - 51,162 - {51162}
- - - - - 2,280 -
- - - (1,600) () - -
- . - - - - {(130,172)
27,934 45 330,492 163,968 228,709 3,030 708,466

————— AT R —T A AT S ———. WA —— T ——  ——— ——e

Non-
controlling  Capital and
Total interests reserves
UJss'000  USS'000 55000
999,718 254,034 1,281,695
331,114 121,199 452,313
(1,977} - (1,986)
750 - 750
{50,537) (43,798) (134,335}
(59,799) - (59,799}
1,179,269 331,435 1,538,638
s e Pz oot S————r—
1,179,269 331,435 1,538,638
384,941 117,285 502,226
2,280 - 2,280
(1,608) - (1,608)
(130,172) (2,300} (132,472}
1,434,710 446,420 1,509,004
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
For the year ended 31 December 2009

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations

The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) Enterprise

income tax paid
Interest paid

Net cash from operating aetivities
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received
Increase in investment in an associate

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair vatue

through profit or loss
Proceeds from disposal of interest in a subsidia
Redemption of debt securities
Dividends received from associates

ry

Purchase of financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends paid to Owners of the Company
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
New borrowings

Repurchase of shares

Repayment of borrowings

Net cash (used in) from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Effect on exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Note

33

34

2009 2008
US$°000 US$°000
1,109,552 690,669
(96,032) (56,246)
(12,644) (31,168)
1,000,876 603,255
15,579 17,307
- (2,349)

- 17,701

6,258 ;

- 4,929

3,059 2,999
(4,002) -
(497,875) (507,014)
(9,698) (15,370)
14,386 14,798
(472,293) (466,999)
(130,172) (150,336)
(45,071) (1,027)
328,065 913,247
- (1,986)
(546,722) (732,077)

(393,900) 27,821
134,683 164,077
384,964 242,892
542 (22,005)
520,189 384,964
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
"Group") are principalty engaged in the manufacture and sale of instant noodles, beverages and bakery
products. The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of its
principal place of business is No. 15, The 3" Street, Tianjin Economic-Technological Development
Area, Tianjin, PRC.

2, BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRS"), which collective term includes all applicable indijvidual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKAS") and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong, and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These financial statements have been prepared on a basis consistent with the accounting policies
adopted in the 2008 financial statements except for the adoption of the new / revised HKFRS that are
effective from the current year as detailed in note 4 to the financial statements. A summary of the
principal accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out in note 3 to the financial statements.

In preparing the financial staternents, the directors have carefully assessed the working capital and
financing requirements of the Group in the foresecable future, as the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by US$283,341,000 (2008: net current liabilities of US341 6,887.000) at
the end of the reporting period.

Taking into account the existing banking facilities of the Group and continuing profitable operations,
the directors are satisfied that the Group has sufficient resources to meet in full its financial obligations
as they fall due in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of measurement

"The measurement basis used in the preparation of these financial statements is historical cost, except
for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which have been measured at fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the fipancial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at 31 December cach year. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting year as that of the Company using consistent accounting policies.

All inter-group balance, transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full, The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceased.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets not held by the Group
and are presented separately in the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable to owners of the Company. Losses
applicable to non-controlling parties in excess of the non-controlling’s interests in the subsidiary’s
equity are allocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent that the minority has a
binding obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the year in which they are
incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the consolidated income statement in the year in which the
item is derecognised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less accumulated impairment losses of property, plant
and equipment, other than construction in progress, over their estitnated useful lives as set out below
from the date on which they are available for use and after taking into account their estimated residual
values, using the straight-line method. Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the costs or valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis and
depreciated separately.

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Machinery and equipment: - For instant noodles and beverages 12 years

- Others 5 to 10 years
Electrical appliances and equipment 5 yeats
Miscellaneous equipment 5 years

Construction in progress

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment in the course of construction for
production or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Cost includes all construction expenditure and other direct costs, including interest
costs, attributable to such projects. Costs on completed construction works are transferred to the
appropriate asset category. No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in progress until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.

Intangible assets — Trademarks

The initial cost of acquiring trademarks is capitalised. Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Trademarks with finite useful lives are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on
the straight-linc basis over their estimated uscful lives.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments are up-front payments to acquire fixed term interests in lessee-occupied land.
The premiums ate stated at cost and are amortised over the period of the lease on a straight-line basis
to the consolidated income statement.

Subsidiaries ,
A subsidiary is an entity in which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an interest in subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss. The catrying amount of the investment is reduced to its recoverable amount on an
individual basis. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Associates
An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary
nor a joint veniure.

The Group’s interests in associates are accounted for under the equity method of accounfing. The
consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share of the post-acquisition results of its
associates for the year. The consolidated statement of financial position includes the Group’s share of
the net assets of associates and also goodwill. The Group discontinues recognising its share of further
fosses when the Group’s share of losses of the associate equals or exceeds the carrying amount of its
interest in the associate, which includes any long term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net interests in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associate are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in
the consolidated income statement.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an interest in associates is stated at cost less
impairment loss determined on individual basis. The results of associates are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group become a parly to the
contractual provisions of the instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when the Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or when the Group transfers the financial asset and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assef. A financial liability is
derecognised only when the liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract expires.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and
financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. They are
carried at fair value, with any resultant gain and loss recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and are not held for trading.
They are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, except where balances are
interest-free loans and without any fixed repayment term or the effect of discounting would be
insignificant. In such case, the receivables are stated at cost less impairment loss. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, over the period to maturity.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition, impairment or through the amortisation process are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assels

Available_for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives financial assets that are either designated at this
category or not classified in any of the other categories of financial assets. They are measured at fair
value with changes in value recognised as other comprehensive income and separate component of
equity until the assets are sold, collected or otherwise disposed of, or until the assets are determined to
be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity is transferred to
the consolidated income statement. Available-for-sale financial assets that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost less
impairment loss.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that
financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are impaired. The impairment loss
of financial assets carried at amortised cost is measured as the difference between the assets’ carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flow discounted at the financiat asset’s original
effective interest rate. The impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement. Such
impairment loss is reversed in subsequent periods through profit or loss when an increase in the
financial assef’s recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had determined the
impairment not been recognised.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between
its acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair value, less any
previously recognised impairment loss, is transferred from equity to profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in profit or loss in respect of available-for-sale equity instrument are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in fair value of available-for-sale equity instrument after
recognition of impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income. Reversal of impairment
loss of available-for-sale debt instruments are reversed through profit or loss, if the increase in fair
value of the instrument can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recoghised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, amounts due to associates, interest-
bearing borrowings and other non-current payables. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at
their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method,
unless the effect of discounting would be insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash equivalents represent short-term
highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of bank overdraft, if any.

Revenue recognifion
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably.

Sale of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides
with the time when the goods are delivered and title has been passed.

Foreign currency translation

Ttems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“functional currency™).
The Company’s functional currency is United States Dollars (“US$”) and majority of its
subsidiaries have Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”) as their functional currency. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in US$, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

On consolidation, the results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the preseniation currency as
follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the
closing rate at the end of the reporting period;

(b) income and expenses for each consolidated income statement are translated at average
exchange rates ;

(c)  all resulting exchange differences arising from the above translation and exchange differences
arising from a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net investment in a foreign
operation are recognised as a separate component of equity. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the cumulative amount of the exchange differences deferred in the separate component of equity
relating to that foreign operation js recognised in the consolidated income statement when the
gain or loss on disposal is recognised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Inventories

Tnventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of
purchase and, where applicable, costs of conversion and other costs that have been incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition, is calculated using the weighted
average cost method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews internal and external sources of information to
determine whether the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease payments,
and intangible assets have suffered an impairment loss or impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may be reduced. The Company reviews its interests in subsidiaries for any indication
of impairment loss or impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may be reduced. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on the higher of its
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the smallest group of
assets that generates cash flows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment Josses is limited to the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit
that would have been determined had no jmpairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversal of
impairment losses is recognised as income immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on the temporary investment of the respective
borrowings, that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, i.e. assets that necessarily take a substantia] period of time to get ready for their intended wvse or
sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantiatlly ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Rentals payable under operating leases arc recognised as an expense
on the straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised in the income
statement as an integral part of the net consideration agreed for the use of the leased asset. Contingent
rentals are recognised as expenses in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Government granis

Government grants represent incentive grants from the relevant PRC authorities in respect of the
running of business by the Group in certain development zones and to encourage the furtherance of
suich business.

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the
grants will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to
an expense item, if is recognised as income over the years necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the grant relafes to an asset, the fair value
is credited to a deferred income account and is released to the consolidated income statement over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution retirement scheme are recognised as expenses
in the consolidated income statement as incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior the contributions are vested fully in those employees. The
assels of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund.

Defined benefit plans

The defined benefit plans are generally funded by payments from employees and the Group, taking
into account of the recommendations of the independent qualified actuaries using the projected unit
credit method. The Group’s obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately
for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for
their services in the current and prior periods, which is discounted to the present value and reduced
by the fair value of any plan assets.

The amount recognised in the statement of financial position represents the present value of the
defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains and losses and unrecognised
past service cost, and reduced by the fair value of plan assets. Any asset resulting from this
calculation is limited to the net total of any cumulative unrecognised net actuarial losses and past
service costs, plus the present value of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan. If there is no change or a decrease in the present value of the ECONOMmic
benefits, the entire net actuarial gains or losses with the past service cost of the current period is
recognised immediately.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions, which exceed 10% of the greater of the present value of the Group’s defined benefit
obligations and the fair value of plan assets are amortised over the expected average remaining
working lives of the participating employees. Past service cost is recognised immediately to the
extent that the benefits are already vested and otherwise is amortised on a straight-line basis over
the average period unti! the benefits become vested.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in exchange for shares or rights over shares.
The cost of such transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date. The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding increase ina share-based payment reserve within equity. The fair
value is determined using the binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions of the
transactions, other than conditions linked to the price of shares of the Company (“market conditions™).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the year(s) in which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled, ending on the date on which the
relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (“vesting date™). During the vesting period, the
number of share options that is expected to vest ultimately is reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged / credited to profit or loss for the year of the
review, with a corresponding adjustment to the reserve within equity.

Faxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. However, any deferred tax arises from initial recognition of goodwill; or other
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or Joss is not recognised.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investment in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the Group and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties

A party is related to the Group if

(a) directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party confrols, is controlled by, or
is under common control with, the Group; or has an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate of the Group;

(c) the party is a joint venture in which the Group is a venturer;

(d) the party is a member of the key management personnel of the Group;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (a) or (d);

(f) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in {d) or (e); or

(g) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the Group, or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the steering
committee that makes strategic decisions.

Future changes in HKFRS
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new
and revised standards, amendments and interpretations that have been issued but not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2008 — amendments to HKFRS st
HKFRSs (Amendments) improvements to HKFRSs 2009/

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements'’/

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Classification of Rights Tssues™

HKAS 39 (Amendments) Eligible Hedged Items'"/

HKFRS 1 {(Amendments) Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters"“]

HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions'¥
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations’”

HE(IFRIC) — Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners'”

M Bffective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after T July 2009 and 1 January 2010, as appropriate
51 Bffective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010

4] Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010

The-directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these amendments, revised standards
and new interpretations will have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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4, ADOPTION OF NEW / REVISED HKFRS

Amendments to HKFRS 7: Financial Instruments - Disclosures

Amendments to HKFRS 7 require additional disclosures about fair value measurement and liquidity
risk. The additional disclosures of fair value measurements by level of a fair value measurement
hierarchy are presented in Note 37 Fair value (a), and the liquidity risk disclosures are not
significantly impacted by the amendments. The Group bas taken advantage of the transitional
provisions set out in the amendments, under which comparative information for the newly required
disclosures about the fair value measurements of financial instruments are not provided in the financial
statements,

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 8, replacing HKAS 14: Segment Reporting, requires a “management approach” under
which segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting
purposes. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-maker. This contrasts with the presentation of segment
information in prior years which was based on a disaggregation of the Group’s financial staterents
into segments based on related products. The adoption of HKFRS 8 has not resulted in significant
changes in the presentation of the Group’s segment information as segment information has been
previously presented on a basis consistent with the internal information reported to the Group’s
chief operating decision maker.

HKAS 1 (Revised): Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised) requires transactions with owners to be presented separately from all other
income and expenses in a revised statement of changes in equity. The revised Standard however
allows non-owner changes in equity to be shown in a single statement (the statement of
comprehensive income) or two statements (the income statement and the statement of
comprehensive income). The Group has elected to prepare two statements. In addition, the revised
Standard requires that when comparative information is restated or reclassified, a statement of
financial position as at the beginning of the comparative period, in addition to the statements of
financial position as at the end of the current period and the comparative period, should be
presented. Since the Group and the Company did not restate comparative information during the
year, this new requirement has no impact on the financial statements.

HEKAS 23 (Revised): Borrowing Costs

HKAS 23 (Revised) eliminates the option to expense borrowing costs and requires that borrowing
costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset should
be capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. The adoption of this revised Standard has no
signification impact on the financial statements.
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4, ADOPTION OF NEW / REVISED HKFRS (CONTINUED)

Improvements to HKFRSs

Improvements to HKFRS (2008) contains improvements to a number of Standards aiming to
remove inconsistencies and clarify wording in the Standards. The adoption of those improvements
had resulted in a number of changes in the details of the Group’s accounting policies. Of those
changes, only HKAS 38 as described below is considered more relevant to the Group:

HKAS 38 Intangible Assets: Expenditure on advertising and promotional activities is recognised as
an expense when the Group either has the right to access the goods or has received the service. The
amendment does not have in a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and judgements are made by the management in
the preparation of the financial statements. They affect the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, reported amounts of assets, labilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They
are assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and relevant factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where
appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period of revision and future
periods, in case the revision also affects future periods.

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and equipment

The directors review the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method of property, plant and
equipment on an annual basis, through careful consideration with regards to expected usage, wear-
and-tear and potential technical obsolescence to usage of the assets.

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event previously causing the impairment no
longer exists, the directors have to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly
in assessing: (1)} whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset value or such event
affecting the asset value has not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the net present value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions fo be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether these cash flow projections are discounted using
an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected by management to determine the level of
impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value used in the impairment test.
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6. TURNOVER AND REVENUE

The Group's turnover and revenue represents the invoiced value of goods seld to customers, net of
returns, discounts and Value Added Tax.

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the executive directors. The Group bas
identified its operating segments and prepared segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the Company’s executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business components and review of these components’
performance. The Company’s executive directors consider the business principaily from a product
perspective as over 90% of the Group’s sales and business are conducted in the PRC. Business
reportable operating segments identified are instant noodles, beverages, bakery and others.

For the purposes of assessing the performance of the operating segments and allocating resources
between segments, the executive directors assess segment profit or loss before income tax without
allocation of finance costs and share of result of associates, which is consistent with that in the
financial statements.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

Business segment analysis

2009
Inter-
Instant segment
noodles Beverages Bakery Others elimination Group
Uss’ 000 Ussoo0  USS060 Uss’o60 US$°600 Uss'006
Turnover and revenue
Revenue from external
customers 2,307,513 2,541,962 155,232 76,406 - 5,081,113
Inter-segment revenue 160 2,829 1,352 81,563 (85,904) -
Segment turnover and
revenue 2,307,673 2,544,791 156,584 157,969 !85,904! 5,081,113
Segment resulis 325,566 287,075 8,695 7,629 763 628,202
FFinance costs (12,644)
Share of resulis of
associates 9,550 9,550
Profit before taxation 625,108
Taxation (124,613)
Profit for the year ._..___.....500’495
Assets
Segment assets 1,436,047 1,743,479 119,682 1,068,872 (1,027,658) 3,340,422
Interests in associates 61,892 61,892
Unatiocated assets 5,379
Total assets _..__3’407’693
Liabilities
Segment liabilities 510,404 868,598 39,456 417,087 (483,195) 1,352,350
Unallocated liabilities 146,279
Total liabilities L:098,629
Other information
Capital expenditures 126,982 363,443 196 16,493 - 507,114
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Business segment analysis (Continued)

2008
Inter-
Instant segment
noodles  Beverages Bakery Others elimination Group
US$°060 ussano Us$’000 US$'000 U858°000 USs'000
Turnover and revenue
Revenue from external
customers 2,084,830 1,924,119 149,922 113,182 - 4,272,053
Inter-segment revenue 212 155 1,482 83,915 (85,764) -
Segment turnover and
revente 2,085,042 1,924,274 151,404 197,097 ( 85,764) 4,272,053
Segment results 202,346 253,364 6,059 32,932 119,1242 475.577
Finance costs {31,168)
Share of results of
associates 7,812 7,812
Profit before taxafion 452,221
Taxation (90,185)
Profit for the year .__3.6_%.?23}?_
Assets
Segment assets 1,215,017 1,482,103 61,109 622,049 (492,236) 2,888,042
Interests in associates 68,095 68,095
Unallocated assets 5,379
Total assets ..59_61_.’512_
Liabilities
Segment liabilities 458,789 801,633 40,226 276,336 (254,854 1,322,130
Unallocated liabilities 100,748
Fotal liabilities 422878
Other information
162,956 332,007 8,742 18,679 - 522,384

Capilal expendifures e e iAo | S ———. P | S
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3. OTHER NET INCOME

Exchange gains, net

Interest income

Investment income

Gain on sales of scrapped materials
Government grants

Others

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
This is stated after charging (crediting):

Finance costs

Interest on bank and other borrowings wholly repayable within five
years

Less: interest expense capitalised into property, plant and equipment

Other items

Staff costs:
Salaries and wages
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses
Pension costs:  Defined contribution plans
Defined benefit plans

Auditor’s remuneration
Cost of inventories
Depreciation
Amortisation:
Prepaid lease payments
Intangible assets (included in other operating expenses)
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial assets
Minimum lease payments in respect of operating lease charges
for premises
Loss (Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of interest in a subsidiary
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Exchange losses (gains), net
Interest income

2009 2008
US$’000 US$ 000
- 19,603
15,579 17,307
5,296 6,602
13,640 13,265
33,395 17,068
12,003 8,582
79,913 82,427
2009 2008
US$°000 US$ 000
14,915 31,168
(2,271) -
12,644 31,168
340,199 313,071
32,224 22,741
2,177 1,308
374,600 337,120
997 798
3,321,764 2,897,449
196,569 181,666
2,048 1,895
2,118 1,968
25,778 15,742
342 -
30,766 26,789
2,051 (1,059)
(3,285) :
- (1,707)
675 (19,603)
(15,579) (17,307)
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10, DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

The aggregate amounts of emoluments received or receivable by the Company’s directors are as

follows:
2009
Salaries Share-
Directors’ and other Discretionary based
fees emoluments bonuses Sub-fotal payments Total
US$ 000 US5°000 US3'000 S8°000 USs$ 000 US$ 000
Executive directors:
Wei Ing-Chou 200 671 134 1,005 433 1,438
Takeshi Ida 80 - - 80 - 80
Wu Chung-Yi 50 8 - 58 - 58
Wei Ying-Chiao 50 12 - 62 - 62
Ryo Yoshizawa 30 12 - 62 - 62
Junichiro Tda 50 12 - 62 - 62
Independent non-
executive directors:
Hsu Shin-Chun 50 12 - 62 - 62
Lee Tiong-Hock 50 8 - 58 - 58
Michio Kusahara 50 12 - 62 - 61
630 747 134 1,511 433 1,944
2008
Salaries
and Share-
Directors’ other  Discrefionary based
fees emoluments bonuses Sub-total  payments Total
_ US$°000 UJS3°000 US$000 US§ 000 Uss°000 Uss 000
Executive directors: -
Wei Ing-Chou 100 416 153 669 128 797
Takeshi Ida 80 - - 80 - 80
Wu Chung-Yi 50 12 - 62 - 62
Wei Ying-Chiao 50 16 - 66 - 66
Ryo Yoshizawa 50 16 - 66 - 66
Junichiro Ida 50 16 - 66 - 66
Independent non-
executive directors:
Hsu Shin-Chun 50 12 - 62 - 62
Lee Tiong-Hock 50 i6 - 66 - 66

Michio Kuwahara

{appointed on 1
April 2008) 37 12 - 49 - 49
Kazuo Ogawa

(resigned on 1 April
2008) 13 4 - 17 - i7
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
No directors have waived emoluments in respect of the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008.

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the year include one
director (2008: one) whose emoluments is reflected in the analysis presented above. Details of the
emoluments of the remaining four individuals (2008: four) are as follows:

2009 2008
Uss’000 US$ 000
Salaries and other emoluments 1,291 1,053
Share-based payments 665 236
Discretionary bonuses 331 348
2,287 1,637
The emoluments were paid to the four highest paid individuals as follows:

Emoluments band Number of individuals
2009 2008
US$320,513 to US$448,718 (H1K$2,500,001 to HK$3,500,000) - 3
1US$448,719 to US$576,923 (HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,500,000) 2 1
US$576,924 to US$705,128 (HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,500,000) 1 -
US$705,129 to US$833,333 (HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,500,000) 1 -
4 4
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11.

TAXATION
2009 2008
Uuss’oo0 USS°000
Current tax — PRC Enterprise income tax
Current year 103,252 60,023
Under provision in prior year 430 672
103,682 60,695
Deferred taxation
Origination and reversal of temporary differences, net 4,696 6,390
Effect of withholding tax on the distributable profits
of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries {Note 28) 16,235 23,100
Total tax charge for the year 124,613 90,185

The Cayman Islands levies no tax on the income of the Company and the Group.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as there was no assessable profit in Hong
Kong for the year.

Subsidiaries in the PRC which engage in manufacture and sale of instant noodles, beverages and
bakery products are subject to tax laws applicable to foreign investment enterprises in the PRC.
Most of the subsidiaries are located at economic development zones and were entitled to a
preferential PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) rate of 15% before 31 December 2007. Also, they
were fully exempt from PRC Enterprise Income Tax for two years starting from the first profit-
making year followed by a 50% reduction for the next three years, commencing from the first
profitable year after offsetting all unexpired tax losses carried forward from the previous years
(“Tax Holidays™).

According to the Tax Relief Notice (Cai Shui [2001] no. 202) on the Grand Development of
Western Region jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of Taxation and
China Customs, foreign investiment enterprises located in the western region of PRC with principal
revenue of over 70% generated from the encouraged business activities are entitled to a preferential
income tax rate of 15% for 10 years from 1 January 2001 to 31 December 2010. Accordingly,
certain subsidiaries located in Western Region are entitled to a preferential rate of 15% (2008:15%).

For the PRC subsidiaries not entitled to a preferential PRC EIT, the applicable PRC EIT is at a
statutory rate of 25% (2008 25%).
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11,

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to the State Council Circular on the Implementation of the Transitional Concession Polices
for Enterprise Income Tax (Guo Fa [2007] no. 39), enterprises previously entitled to a reduced tax
rate shall have a grace period of five years regarding the tax reduction commencing on 1 January
2008; the subsidiaries which were entitled to a 15% EIT rate will be subjected to tax rates of 18% in
2008, 20% in 2009, 22% in 2010, 24% in 2011 and 25% in 2012 and thereafter. The subsidiaries
that have been granted tax concessions under the tax preferential policies in the Grand Development
of Western Region shall continue to enjoy the tax concessions untif expiry.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from theoretical amount that would arise
using the tax rates prevailing in the countries in which the subsidiaries operate as follows:

Reconciliation of tax expenses

2009 2008
Uss’000 Us$’000
Profit before taxation 025,108 452,221
Income tax at domestic tax rates applicable to
profits in the respective countries 156,277 113,055
Non-deductible expenses 14,565 12,832
Tax exempt revenue (4,425) (3,929)
Unrecognised tax losses 2,972 3,663
Unrecognised temporary differences 730 -
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (532) (2,198)
Tax Holidays (24,333) (23,869)
Lower tax rates for specific districts (36,557) (34,126)
Effect of withho!ding tax on the distributable profits '
of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries (Nofe 31) 16,235 23,100
Under provision in prior years 430 672
Others (749) 985
Tax expense for the year 124,613 90,185

The applicable tax rate was 25% (2008: 25%).
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12, PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to Owners of the Company includes a loss of US$5,601,000
(2008: USS$8,215,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Compary’s profit for the year:

2009 2008
US$’000 Us$ 060
Amount of consolidated loss attributable to Owners dealt with
in the Company’s financial statements (5,601) (8,215)
Dividends from subsidiaries and associates attributable to the
profits of the previous financial years, approved and
paid during the year 206,180 13,226
Company’s profit for the year 280,579 5,011
13. DIVIDENDS
(a) Dividends attributable to the year:
2009 2008
US$’000 Us$§ 000
Final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period of
US3.43 cents (2008: US2.33 cents) per ordinary share 191,627 130,172

At meeting held on 22 March 2010, the directors recommended the payment of final dividend of
1S3.43 cents per ordinary share. The proposed final dividend has not been recognized as dividend
payables in the statement of financial position, but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained
profits for the year ending 31 December 2010,

(b) Dividends attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the year:

2009 2008
Uss’000 USs 000

Final dividend in respect of the previous financial year, approved
and paid during the year, of US2.33cents
(2008: US1.62 cents) per ordinary share 130,172 90,537

Special dividend in respect of the previous financial year, approved
and paid during the year, USENil
(2008: US1.07 cents) per ordinary share - 59,799

130,172 150,336
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a)  Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit aftributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of US$383,207,000 (2008: US$260,404,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 5,586,793,360 shares (2008: 5,588,264,856 shares) in
issue during the year.

(b)  Diluted earnings per share
The calcutation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to ordinary
equity shareholders of the Company of US$383,207,000 (2008: US$260,404, 000} and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 5,596,995,082 shares (2008: 5,588,264,856

shares), calculated as

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

2009 2008
000 ‘000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
at 31 December 5,580,793 5,588,265
Effect of deemed issue of shares under the Company’s
share option scheme 10,202 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)
at 31 December 5,596,995 5,588,265
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15,

{a) Group

Reconciliation of carrying
amount — year ended
31 December 2008
At beginning of year
Additions
Transfer upon completion
Impairment loss (Note i)
Disposals
Depreciation
Reclassification
Exchange adjustment

At end of the reporting period

Reconciliation of carrying
amount — year ended
31 December 2009

At beginning of year

Additions

Transfer upon completion

Impairment loss (Note i}

Disposals

Disposal of a subsidiary

Depreciation

Reclassification

Exchange adjustment

At end of the reporting period

At 1 January 2009

Cost

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment fosses

At 31 December 2009

Cost

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Electrical
Machinery appliances
and and Miscellaneous Construction
Buildings  equipment equipment equipment  in progress Total
Us$ 000 Uss 600 US$ 000 US$ 000 USS 060 US$*000
349,352 948,052 12,116 34,978 222,850 1,567,348
15,499 124,119 5,909 19,328 342,159 507,014
62,883 298,146 © 1,017 7,381 (369,427} -
- {15,742) - - - (15,742)
{4,976) (4,392) (3i2) (1,410} - (11,090}
(26,907) (141,381) (3,503) (9,875) - (181,666)
3,818 2,808 47 (6,673) - -
23,198 69,212 822 2,189 13,160 108,581
422,867 1,230,822 16,096 45,918 208,742 1,974,445
422,867 1,280,822 16,096 45,918 208,742 1,974,445
20,377 94,900 4,367 37,649 340,582 497,875
51,584 119,560 517 8,765 {180,426) -
- (25,778) - - - (25,778)
(4,744) (9,764) (462) (1,467) - {16,437
(2,739) (13,628) (433) (603) (458) (17,863)
(26,704) (148,143) {3,686) (18,036) - (196,569)
- 7 (2,931 2,924 - -
445 661 3 (235} 91 965
461,086 1,298,637 13,471 74,913 368,531 2,216,638
602,019 2,048,748 35,377 87,828 208,742 2,982,714
{179,152) (767,926) (19,281) {41,910) - (1,008,269)
422,867 1,280,822 16,096 45,918 208,742 1,974,445
665,368 2,135,885 32,117 132,662 368,531 3,334,563
(204,282) (837,248) {18,646) {(57,749) - (1,117,92%)
461,086 1,298,637 13471 74,913 368,531 2,216,638
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15.

(b)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Notes :

(i) After considering the technical obsolescence and reassessing the assets redeployment policy and assets
replacement strategy of the Group, management has assessed the recoverable amounts of certain plant
and machinery, principally based on their fair value less costs 1o sell in the market, and on this basis,
recognised an impairment loss of US$25,778,000 (2008: US$13,742,000) for the year.

(iD) Property, plant and equipment with an aggregate net book value at the end of the reporting period of
US$10,582,000 (2008: US$11,821,000) were pledged to secure the Group’s credit facilities.

Company
2009 2008
Machinery Machinery
and Miscellaneous and Miscellaneous
equipment equipment Total equipment equipment Total
US3'600 uss'oon  USS000 US$000 Usso60  USS'000
Reconciliation of
carrying amount
At beginning of the year 210 12 222 305 13 318
Additions - 5 3 5 4 S
Disposals - - - () N (2)
Depreciation {(93) (4) 7 (101} 4) (105)
Exchange adjustment 1 - 1 2 - 2
At end of the reporting
period 118 13 131 210 12 222
At 31 December
Cost 807 50 857 793 45 838
Accumulated
depreciation (689) (37 (726) (583) (33) (616)
118 13 131 210 i2 222
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16.

17.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Reconciliation of carrying amount

At beginning of the year
Amortisation

At end of the reporting period

At end of the reporting period
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Group

Trademarks

2009 2008
Us$’000 Uss'000

9,733 11,701
2,778) (1,968)

6,955 9,733

17,657 17,657
(10,702) (7,924)

6,955 9,733

Intangible assets represent trademarks exchanged through the reorganisation of a joint venture. The
trademarks are amortised over the estimated useful life of seven and a half years.

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted shares, at cost
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2009 are shown in note 40,

Company

2009 2008
Uss$’000  USS’'000

350,548 363,148
285,414 193,278

635,962 556,426
(102,71) _ (97,392)

533,251 459,034

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-frec and have no fixed repayment term except
for a loan to a subsidiary for US$5,000,000 (2008 US$500, 000), bearing interest at 1.25% (2008: 3%4)
per annum and repayable within 1 year. Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest
bearing with no fixed term of repayment.
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18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008
Uuss’on0 US3'000 USs' 000 Us$ 000

Cost of investment in associates

Listed outside Hong Kong 23,836 23,836 14,748 14,748
Unlisted 18,831 18,831 13,872 13,872
42,667 42,667 28,620 28,620

Share of post-acquisition resuits, net of
dividends received 30,370 23,813 - -
73,037 66,480 28,620 28,620
Due from associates 35,930 64,161 33,981 38,974
Due fo associates (47,075) (62,516) - (179)

61,892 68,095 62,601 67,415

Market value of listed shares at the end of
reporting period 117,711 58,334 79,661 39479

The amounts due from (to) associates are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment term.
The carrying amounts due approximate their fair values.

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates at the end of the reporting period, which in the
opinion of the directors principally affect the Group’s results for the year or form a substantial
portion of the Group’s net assets, are as follows:

Place of  Particulars of class
incorporation of issued shares/ Proportion
Name foperation registered capital of ownership interest  Principal activity
Directly  Indireetly

Wei Chuan Foods Taiwan 506,062,900 ordinary 11.61% 5.55% Manufacture and
Corporation shares of NT$10 each sale of foods and
Limited (“Wei beverages
Chuan™)

Tingzheng Cayman 34,000,000 ordinary  40.80% - Manufacture and
(Cayman Islands} Islands  shares of US$1 cach sale of packaging
Holding Corp. materials

Kagome PRC US$17,100,000 / - 29% Manufacture and
(Hangzhou) US$17,100,000 sale of beverages

Foods Co., Ltd.
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18.

19.

20.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

All associates are unlisted corporate entities, except for Wei Chuan which is a company listed
outside Hong Kong,

The Group exercises significant influence through representation on the board of directors of Wei
Chuan. In the opinion of directors, Wei Chuan is an associate of the Group.

Summary of financial information of associates at the Group’s effective interest are as follows:
Group

2009 2008
Us$°060 Us$'600

Assets 157,683 180,559

Liabilities (83,594) (113,538)
Revenue 190,156 203,189

Profit for the year 9,674 7,835

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Prepaid lease payments represent cost paid for medinm-term leasehold land jn the PRC. The cost is
amortised over the leasehold period. The amount to be amortised within twelve months after the end of
the reporting period amounted to US$2,216,000 (2008: US$2,022,000) and is included in prepayments
and other receivables.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008
USs’000 Us$ 000 US3'000 US$’000

Equity investments, unlisted
Costs 11,452 11,462 3,054 3,028
Impairment losses (8,044) (7,702) (342) -
3,408 3,760 2,712 3,028

The unlisted investments represent long-term investments in unlisted equity securities. They are
measured at cost less impairment at the end of each reporting period because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the directors are of the opinion that their fair
values cannot be measured refiably.
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20.

21.

22.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The available-for-sales financial assets are denominated in the following currencies:

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Uss ’600 US$’000 US$ 600 US$'000
USS 1,014 1,014 1,014 1,614
RMB 732 732 - .
New Taiwan dollar 1,472 1,445 1,472 1,445
Others 190 569 226 ____5_62_
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
US$’060 US§'000 Us3’'000 Uss 000
Investments held for trading
- equity securities listed outside Hong Kong 3,024 - 3,024 -
- unlisted investments - 550 - 24
- US$ currency fund 1,002 - 1,002 -
4,026 550 4,626 24

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are denominated in the following currencies:

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Uss 000 JS3°000  USS 000 US§ 600
US$ 1,002 550 1,062 24
New Taiwan dollar 3024 - 304 -
INVENTORIES
Group
2009 2008
Us$’000 US$°000
Raw materials 107,865 98,249
Work in progress 7,658 8,110
Finished goods 97,400 88,545

212,923 194,904
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The majority of the Group’s sales is cash-on-delivery. The remaining balances of sales are mainly at
credit term ranging from 30 to 90 days. The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of impairment
losses for bad and doubtful debts) as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Group
2009 2008
Uss 000 US$°000
0 — 90 days 105,985 117,008
Over 90 days 9,600 12,936

115,591 129,944

Ageing of amounts that are past due but not impaired:

Group
2009 2008
Uss’000 US$ 000

Balances exceed normal credit period

Within 30 days 5,398 6,031
30-90 days 3,035 3,435
Over 90 days 3,318 3,352

11,751 12,818

The trade receivables that are past due but not impaired related to a number of independent
customers that have a good track record with the Group. The Group has not impaired these debtors
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the directors believe that the amounts
are recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The trade receivables are mainly denominated in RMB.

24, PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

Bank deposits of US$9,358,000 (2008: US$4,889,000) have been pledged as security for general
banking and trade finance facilities, including the issuance of bank acceptance bills, granted to the
Group by banks.
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25.

26.

Bank balances and cash
Pledged bank deposits

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As stated in the consolidated statement

of cash flow

The cash and cash equivalents arc denominated in the following currencies:

RMB
Us$
EURO
Others

ISSUED CAPITAL

Authorised:
Ordinary shares of US$0.005
cach

Issued and fully paid:
At beginning of the year
Share repurchase

Group
2009 2008
Uss 000 US$°000
510,831 380,075
9358 4,889
520,189 384,964
Group
2009 2008
Uss 000 USs$°000
492,794 321,354
17,530 59,821
5128 1,846
4,736 1,943
Details of the Group’s foreign currency risk and credit risk discussion are set out in note 37.
Company
2009 2008
No. of shares Uss060 No. of shares Us$’000
7,000,000,000 35,000 7,000,000,000 35,000
5,586,793,360 27,934 5,588,705,360 27,943
- - (1,912,000) (9)
5,586,793,360 27,934 5,586,793,360 27,934

At end of the reporting period
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27.
(@)

(b)

RESERVES
Group

The retained profits of the Group include profits of US$20,898,000 (2008: US$14,407,000)
accumulated by associates of the Group.

Company
Capital Exchange Share-hased
redemption Share translation payment Retained
reserve premiuni reserve reserve profits Total
US$ 000 Uss$ '000 Uss 000 US3'000 US3°000 Uss'000
At 1 January 2008 36 332,478 (1,003) - 227,333 558,342
Profit for 2008 - - - - 5,011 5,011
Exchange translation difference - - 208 - - 208

b=

Share repurchase in 2008 (1,986) - - - (1,977)
Recognition of equity-setiled

share-based payment reserve - - - 750 - 750
(59,799) (59,799)

(90,537)  (90,537)

1

2007 special dividend paid - - -
2007 final dividend paid - - N

At 31 December 2008 45 330,492 (797) 750 82,008 412,498
At 1 January 2009 45 330,492 (797) 750 82,008 412,498
Profit for 2009 - - - - 200,579 200,579
Exchange translation difference - - {436) - - (436)
Recognition of equity-settled

share-based payment reserve - - - 2,280 - 2,280
2008 finat dividend paid - - - - (130,172) (130,172}
At 31 December 2009 45 330,492 {1,233) 3,030 152,415 484,749

e ——

Capital redemption reserve
Capital redemption reserve has been set up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands on repurchases and canceliations of the Company's own shares.

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, where a company issues shares at a premium,
whether for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the value of the premiums on
their shares shall be transferred to share premium account,

The application of the share premium account is governed by the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands.

Share premium of the Company is distributable to shareholders subject to the provisions of the
Company's Memorandum and Articles of Association and provided that immediately following the
distribution the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
Accordingly, the Company’s distributable reserves as at 31 December 2009 amounted to
US$482,907,000 (2008: US$412,500,000).
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27.

28.

RESERVES (CONTINUED)

Exchange translation reserve
The exchange translation reserve has been set up and are dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies adopted for foreign currency ranslation.

General reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, the PRC subsidiaries are required to appropriate to
the general reserve an amount not less than 10% of the amount of profit after taxation (as reported in
the respective statutory financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries prepared in accordance with PRC
accounting regulations). If the accumulated general reserve Teaches 50% of the registered capital of
the respective PRC subsidiaries, the enterprise may not be required to make any further appropriation.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme™) was adoepted pursuant to a resolution passed
on 20 March 2008. The Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants (as defined below) had or may have made to
the Group.

The Broad of Directors may, at its discretion, offer o grant an option to:-

6] any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries;

(1) any directors (including non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors)
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and

(i)  any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

Without prior approval from the Company’s sharcholders, the maximum number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme and under any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total pumber of shares in issue at
the time the Scheme is adopted by the shareholders (i.e. 20 March 2008). At 31 December 2009, the
number of shares in respect of which options had been granted was 38,448,000 (2008: 11,760,000)
and remained outstanding under the Scheme was 37,126,000 (2008: 11, 760,000), representing 0.7%
(2008:0.2%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

The fotal number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company (including both
exercised and outstanding options) to an individual in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
shall nof exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant of options in
excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders’ approval.
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28.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION (CONTINUED)

The exetcise price is determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, and will not be less than the
higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (jii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors, save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has been granted. The
options will be vested after five years from the date of grant. The consideration on the grant of
option is HK$1. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the
Company.

Details of share options granted by the Company pursuant to the Scheme and the share options
outstanding as at December 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

Number of Number of
share opfions share options
Grant date granted outstanding Exercise price Exercisable period
2009 2008 HKS

20 March 2008 11,760,000 11,530,000 11,760,000 928 21 March 2013 to
20 March 2018

22 April 2009 26,688,000 25,596,000 - 938 23 April 2014 to
22 April 2019

Movements in the number of option outstanding and their weighted average exercise prices are as
follows:

Group and Company
Weighted
average Number
exercise price  of options

HKS ‘000
At 1 January 2008 - -
Granted during the year 9.28 11,760
31 December 2008 and At I January 2009 9.28 11,760
Granted during the year 9.38 26,688
Forfeited during the year 9.36 (1,322)
At 31 December 2009 9.35 37,126
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28,

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION (CONTINUED)

The options outstanding at 31 December 2009 had an exercise price of HK$9.28 or HK$9.38 (2008:
HK$9.28) and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 9.38 years (2008: 9.75 years). No
option had been exercised up to 31 December 2009,

The fair value of the share options granted is measured at the date of grant, using the binomial
option pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions of the share-based arrangement.
The fair value calculated is inherently subjective and uncertain due to the assumptions made and the
limitations of the model used. The inputs into the model are as follows:-

Share options granted on

20 March 2008 22 April 2009
Fair value at grant date HK$3.74 per share HK$3.34 per share
Share price at grant date HK $8.55 per share HX$9.37 per share
Exercise price HK$9.28 per share ' HK$9.38 per share
Risk-free interest rate 4.37T% 2.51%
Expected volatility 40% 36%
Expected life 10 years 10 years
Expected dividend yield 2% 2%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of the Company’s share price over
the year of share option granted. The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair vatue of
the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate.

During 2009, US$2,280,000 (2008: US$750,000) was charged to the income statement in respect of
share-based payment transactions seftled in equity.
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29. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Us$°000 USs$ 000 USss’000 US$°000
The maturity of the unsecured bank loans
is as follows:
Within one year 218,087 431,229 20,500 78,500
In the second year 71,983 58,870 20,000 5,500
In the third to fifth years, inclusive 45,000 76,982 45,000 -
335,070 567,081 85,500 84,000
Portion classified as current liabilities (218,087) (431,229} (20,5000 (78,5000
Non-current portion 116,983 135,852 65,000 5,500

The weighted average effective interest rate on the bank loans is 4.21 % (2008: 5.46%) per annum.

An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’s total borrowings by type is as follows:

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Uss$600 US3°000 US$’000 U/S$°000
At fixed rates 70,674 350,873 - -
At floating rates 264,396 216,208 85,500 84,000

335,470 567,081 85,500 84,000

The interest-bearing borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Us$’a00 US$000 Uss 000 US$'600
RMEB 44,855 212,769 - -
Uss 263,658 347,240 85,500 84,000
EURO 26,557 7,072 - -

Details of the Group’s foreign currency risk and interest rate risk discussion are set out in note 37.
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30.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Defined contribution plans

The Group participates in defined contribution plans organised by the relevant local government
authorities in the PRC for all PRC employces whereby the Group is required to make monthly
contributions to these plans at certain percentage of the relevant portion of the payroll of these
employees to the pension scheme to fund the benefits. The Group has no obligation for the payment
of retirement and other post-retirement benefits for the PRC employees other than the monthly
contributions described above.

Defined benefit plans : -

The Group has defined benefit plans for Taiwan employees. Pension obligation is provided based on
the length of service and average monthly salary for the final six months of employment. The
contributions made by the Group during the year were calculated based on advice from Messrs.
Watson Wyatt, Taiwan Branch (“Watson Wyatt”), an independent actuaries and consultants. The
latest actuarial valuation was performed by Watson Wyatt as at 31 December 2009 using the
projected unit credit method.

The amount included in the statement of financial position arising from the obligation of the Group
and the Company in respect of its defined benefit plans are as follows:

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Us$’000 US§ 000 US3°000 USs600
Present value of unfunded obligations 18,193 10,255 11,009 6,538
Net actuarial (losses) gain not recognised (6,816) {1,055) {2,763) 785
Net liability arising from defined benefit
obligation 11,377 9,200 8,246 7,323

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations are as follows:

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

USs$’000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$ 000

At beginning of year 10,255 7,718 6,540 5,238
Current service cost 1,242 1,114 714 367
Interest cost 225 194 143 130
Actuarial gain 6,471 1,229 3,612 803
At end of the reporting period 18,193 10,255 11,009 6,538
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30.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

Total amount of expense recognised in the consolidated income statement:

Group
20409 2008
US$000 LS$°000
Current service cost 1,242 1,114
Interest cost 225 194
Net expense for the year included in administrative
expenses 1,467 1,308
The principal assumptions used for accounting purposes were:
Group and Company
2009 2008
% %
Discount rate 2.00 2.25
Expected rate of salary increases 7.00 3.00
Historical information
Group
2009 2008 2007 2006
Usso00 Us$'000 Us§ 000 US3'000
Present value of the defined benefit :
obligations 18,193 10,255 7,718 7,627
Experience adjustments arising on plan
liabilities 903 1,815 735 473
Company
2009 2008 2007 2006
US$000 US§'000 US$'060 USE'000
Present value of the defined benefit
obligations 11,009 6,538 5,342 5,331
Experience adjustments arising on plan
927 551 331

Habilities 485

—TCGGTE— WSS P —T—
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31. DEFERRED TAXATION

Group
2009 2008
USs’q00 [/S§°000
At beginning of year 34,469 4,979
Charge to consolidated income statement 20,931 29,490
At end of the reporting period 55,400 34,469
Recognised deferred tax assets (liabilities)
Group
2009 2008
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Uss’060 US$°000 US$°000 US3 000
Accelerated depreciation allowance - (18,190} - (16,901)
Decelerated depreciation allowance 1,680 - 1,333 -
Withholding tax - (39,335) - (23,100)
Others 3,699 (3,254) 4,046 153
Deferred tax assets (liabilities) 5,379 (60,779) 5,379 (39,848)

Pursuant to the PRC EIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends distributed to foreign
investors by the foreign investment enierprises established in PRC. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to carnings accumulated after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between PRC and jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, the applicable rate is 10% and deferred tax
liability is only provided on those parts of post-2007 earnings that are expected to be distributable in
the foreseeable future. At 31 December 2009, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax
fiability (2008: Nil) for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings from the PRC
subsidiaries. : '

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of US$40,015,000 (2008:
US$48,276,000), which can be carried forward against future taxable income. Losses amounting to
US$2,623,000 (2008: US$1,684,000) and US$11,380,000 (2008: US§3,069,000) will expire in 2010
and 2011 respectively.

There was no assessable profit in Hong Kong for the year. The Company does not have
unrecognised deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of reporting period.
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32.

33.

TRADE PAYABLES

The ageing analysis of trade payables as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
USE000 US3’000 US$’000 US$°000
0 —90 days 586,944 371,817 2,818 2,728
Over 90 days 35,253 32,108 - -
622,197 403,925 2,818 2,728

The trade payables are denominated in the following currencies:

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
US$ ‘o060 US$°060 Uss 000 US$°000
RMB 618,991 401,197 - -
Uss 388 - - -
New Taiwan dollar 2,818 2,728 2,818 2,728

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

2009 2008
US$°000 US$°000
Profit before taxation 625,108 452,221
Interest expenses 12,644 31,168
Interest income (15,579) (17,307)
Depreciation 196,569 181,666
Amortisation on lease premium for land 2,048 1,895
Amortisation on intangible assets 2,778 1,968
Loss (Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2,051 (1,059)
Impairment foss on property, plant and equipment 25,778 15,742
Impairment loss on financial asset at fair vatue through profit or loss 526 -
Share of results of associates (9,550) (7,812)
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss - (1,707}
Gain on disposal of interest in a subsidiary (3,285) -
Effect on exchange rate changes 8) 263
Net repayment from (advances to) associates 12,761 (24,487)
Impairment loss on available for sale financial assets 342 -
Recognition of equity-settled share-based payment 2,280 750
Increase in inventaries (21,057) (28,912)
Increase in {rade receivables (657) (7,612)
(Increase) Decrease in prepayments and other receivables {69,612) 12,565
Increase in trade payables 224,507 46,695
Increase in other payables 114,498 43,441
Increase (Decrease) in advance payments from customers 5,997 (9,550)
Decrease in other non-current payables (764) (566)
Increase in present value of unfunded employee benefit obligations 2,177 i,307
Cash generated from operations 1,109,552 690,669
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34. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 7 November 2008, the Company and Wei Chuan (BVI) Co., Ltd. entered into an agreement,
pursuant to which Wei Chuan (BVI) had conditionally agreed to acquire from the Company the
entire equity interest in Hangzhou Wei Chuan Foods Co., Ltd. (*Hangzhou Wei Chuan) at a
consideration of RMB73.96million. Hangzhou Wei Chuan is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of refrigeration products. The

disposal was completed in July 2009.

The carrying amount of the identifiable assets and labilities of the subsidiary as at the date of

disposal are as follows:

2609
US$'000
Net assets disposed of:

Property, plant and equipment 17,863
Inventories 3,126

Trade receivables 15,069

Prepayments and other receivables 6,400

Barnk balances and cash 4,577
Trade payables (6,418)
Other payables (18,153)
Interest-bearing borrowings (13,053)
Taxation (253)

Net assets value 9,158
Realisation of exchange reserve upon disposal (1,600)
Realisation of general reserve upon disposal {8)
Gain on disposal of interest in a subsidiary 3,285

Total consideration, satisfied by cash consideration 10,835

Analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of disposal of a subsidiary:

2009

Ussoao

Cash consideration 10,835
Cash and cash equivalents disposed (4,577)

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents 6,258
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35.

36.

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the fransactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the
Group entered into the following material refated party transactions in the ordinary course of the
Group’s business.

2009 2008
Us$600 US§°000
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits paid to:
Key management personnel, excluding amounts paid to the
Company’s directors as disclosed in note 10 3,232 2,327
Purchases of goeds from:
Associates 261,802 204,412
Company under common control by a substantial sharcholder
of the Company - 6,196
Holding companies of a minority shareholder of subsidiaries
of the Company 2,664 1,637
Proceed from the disposal of a subsidiary to an associate 10,835 -

As of 31 December 2008, an associate and the holding companies of a minority shareholder of
subsidiaries of the Company had provided guarantees provided to the Group’s bankers for
US$4,393,000 and US$1,775,000 respectively for securing banking facilities granted to the Group.
No such guarantee was obtained at the end of reporting period.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group monitors its capital, which comprises all equity components, using a gearing ratio which
is calculated on the basis of net debt (interest bearing borrowings pet of cash and cash equivalents)
as a ratio of the equity attributable to owners of the Company as disclosed in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at the end of the reporting period
were as follows:

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

HKS HK3 HKS$ HK$
Interest bearing borrowings 335,070 567,081 85,500 84,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (520,18%) (384,964) (6,312) (16,845)
Net (cash) debt (185,119 182,117 79,188 73,155
Total equity 1,462,644 1,207,203 512,683 440,432
Gearing ratio -12,66% 15.09% 15.45% 16.61%
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36.

3.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance and makes adjustments to capital structure according to changes in
economic conditions for achieving its objectives through payment of dividends, share repurchase
and issue of new debt. Changing of borrowing rate in the market, future capital expenditures and
investment opportunities are taken into consideration. The Group’s strategy remains unchanged
from that of 2008.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s financial instruments expose it to foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Board of Directors generally adopts conservative strategies on its risks
management and limits the Group’s exposure to these risks to a minimum. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:

Foreign currency risk

The majority of the subsidiaries of the Group are operated in the PRC and most of their transactions
are denominated in RMB, The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through capital
expenditures, purchases, bank balances, borrowings, and financial assets at fair value through profit or
Joss that are denominated in currency other than the functional currency of the subsidiaries.

The exchange rate of RMB against US$ is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
conirol promulgated by the PRC government. The Group did not has significant exposure to foreign
exchange risk and has not hedged its foreign exchange risk because the subsidiaries of the Group
mainly earn their profits in RMB and the value of RMB has been appreciating against USD.

Details of the Group’s bank balances and borrowings denominated in RMB, USD and EURO as at 31
December 2008 and 2009 are set out in notes 25 and 29 respectively.

At the end of the reporting period, if the exchange rates of RMB/US$ and RMB/EUR had
strengthened/ weakened by 5% with all other variables held constant, the Group’s profit for the year
and retained profits would have been US$14,550,000 (2008: US$15,188,000) higher { lower.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
long-term borrowings with floating interest rates. The Group’s policy is to manage its inferest cost
using a mix of fixed and variable rate debts. The Group has not hedged its cash flow and fair value
interest rate risk. The Group’s strategy is to maintain an appropriate proportion between borrowings at
fixed interest rates and floating interest rates, in consideration of economic atmosphere and the
strategies of the Group.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been 10 (2008: 10} basis point higher / lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year and refained profits would
decrease / increase by US$264,000 (2008: US$216,000).
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalent,
trade and other receivables. Substantially all of the Group’s and the Company’s pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents were deposited in the creditworthy global financial
institutions and state-controlled financial institutions in the PRC, which management consider they
are without significant credit risk. Specific policy and procedures have been decided by
management to assess the credit risk of trade receivable (note 23) and other receivable. Individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
statement of financial position.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objectives when managing liquidity risk are to maintain sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed credit facilities to the Group. Also, the Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liguidity requirements, in particular relating to capital expenditure and
repayments of debts. At the end of the reporting period, the Board of Directors expected that the
Group had no significant liquidity risk in the near future. Details of the preparation of financial
statements on a going concern basis are set out in note 2.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period based on
contractual undiscounted payments are summarised below:

Group

Within 1 More than 1 More than 2

year or on year but less years but less
demand than 2 years than 5 years Total
Uss'000 Us§ 000 US$'000 US3 000

At 31 December 2009

Due to associates 47,075 - - 47,075
Trade payables 622,197 - - 622,197
Other payables 405,445 - - 405,445
Interest-bearing borrowings 220,411 72,947 45,627 338,985
Other non-current payables 765 765 766 2,296

1,295,893 73,712 46,393 1,415,998
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Group
Within 1 More than 1 More than 2
year or on year but less years but fess
demand than 2 years than 5§ years Total
US$ 000 Us§ 000 US3 000 US3 000
At 31 December 2008
Due to associates 62,516 - - 62,546
Trade payables 403,925 - - 403,925
Other payables 351,710 - - 351,710
Interest-bearing borrowings 461,239 68,902 77,732 607,933
Other non-current payables 765 765 765 2,295
1,280,185 69,727 78,497 1,428,409
Company
Within 1 More than 1 More than 2
year or on year buf less years but less
demand than 2 years than 5 years Total
Uss 000 US5°000 Uss ao0 US3 000
At 31 December 2009
Due to subsidiaries 102,711 - - 102,711
Trade payables 2,818 - - 2,818
Other payables 765 - - 7635
Interest-bearing borrowings 21,390 20,737 45,627 87,754
127,684 . 20,737 45,627 194,048
Company
Within 1 Morethani ~  More than2
year or ¢n year but less years but Jess
demand than 2 years than S years Total
US$ 000 US$ 000 Uss'000 LIS§ 000
At 31 December 2008
Due {o subsidiaries 97,392 - - 97,392
Due to associales 179 - - 179
Trade payables 2,728 - - 2,728
Other payables 8,918 - - 8,918
Interest-bearing borrowings 95,958 11,023 - 106,981
205,175 11,023 - 216,198
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RN FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED}

Fair value

(@)

®)

Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of financial instruments measured at fair value at
the end of the reporting period across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in
HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value of each financial instrument
categorised in its entirely based on the lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value
measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

- Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical financial instrument

- TYevel 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data

- Level 3 (fowest level): fair values measured using valuation techniques in which any
significant input is not based on observable market data

Group and Company

2009 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US8°000 Uss 000 US3'000 US$'000

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

- Equity investments, listed overseas 3,024 - - 3,024
- 1SS currency fund - 1,002 - 1,002
3,024 1,002 - 4,026

During the reporting period, there were no transfers between instruments in Level 1 and Level 2.
Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair value
In the opinion of the directors, the carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s financial

instraments carried at cost or amortised cost are not materiafly different from their fair values as
at 31 December 2009 and 2008.
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38. COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments
Group
2009 2008
US$’000 US$°000
Contracted but not provided for 168,497 86,152
(b) Commitments under operating leases

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases, which are payable as follows:

Group
2009 2008
US8°000 US§°000
Within one year 12,950 13,249
In the second to fifth years inclusive 19,282 24913
After five years 5,920 2,650

38,152 40,812

39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Company
2009 2008
US3’000 US$°000
Guarantees for credit facilities granted to
subsidiaries ' 248,059 207,610
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40,

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Name

Tianjin Tingyi
International Food
Co., Ltd.

Guangzhou Tingyi
Food Co., Ltd.

Hangzhou Tingyi Food
Co., Ltd.

Master Kong
(Hangzhou)
Convenient Food
Co., Ltd.

Chonggqing Tingyi
Food Co., Ltd.

Shenyang Tingyi Food
Co., Ltd

Wuhan Tingyi Food
Co., Lid.

Xian Tingyi Food Co.,
Ltd.

Qingdao Tingyi Food
Co., Ltd.

Harbin Tingyi Food
Co., Lid.

Fujian Tingyi Food
Co., Ltd.

Place of
incorporatio
n / operation

PRC
PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

Registered

capital / issued

share capital

US$72,000,000

US$31,000,000

US3$46,600,000/

1US$39,000,000

US$20,000,000

1J8$22,000,000

US$17,000,000

US8$17,800,000

US$17,000,000

US$5,000,000

US$11,200,000

US$4,500,000

Proporiion of
ownership interest

Directly

100%

Indirectly

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activity

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Mamufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

40, PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

i Place of
incorporation /
Name operation
* Xinjiang Tingyi Food PRC
Co., Ltd.
* NanJing Tingyi Food PRC
Co., Ltd
Master Kong (Taiwan) Taiwan
Foods Co., Ltd. #
Cheng Du Tingyi Food PRC
Co., Ltd.
Hebei Yi Wan Xiang PRC
Foods Co., Ltd. #
# Master Kong PRC
{Kunming)
Convenient Food
Co., Ltd.
* Master Kong PRC
{Shenyang)
Convenient Food
Co., Ltd.
Fumanduo Investment PRC
Co., Ltd. #
* Huajan Fumanduo PRC
Food Co., Ltd
Meishan Fumanduo PRC
Food Co., Ltd.
* Chngsha Fumanduo PRC
Food Co.,, Ltd. #
* Zhengzhou Fumanduo PRC

Food Co., Ltd. #

Registered
capital / issued
share capital

US$3,000,000
US$14,000,000/

US$$10,600,000

50,000,000
ordinary shares of
NT$10 each/
NT$500,000,000

US$17,000,000

RMB187,500,000

1US$3,000,000

US$6,000,000

US$$30,000,000

US8$5,000,000

US$5,000,000

Us$5,000,000

18$5,000,000

Proportion of
ownership interest

Directly

100%

Indirectly

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

H0%

F00%

100%

106%

100%

100%

Principal activity

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufaciure and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodies

Manufacture and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacturing and
sale of instant
noodles

Investment holding

Manufacturing and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacturing and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacturing and
sale of instant
noodies

Manufacturing and
sale of instant
noodles
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

40.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of
incorporation /
Name operation
* Lanzhou Fumanduo PRC
Food Co., Ltd.
* Chongqing Fumanduo PRC
Food Co., Ltd.
* Xianyang Fumanduo PRC
Food Co., Ltd.
* Xinjiang Fumanduo PRC
Food Co., Ltd.
* Hebei Fumanduo Food PRC
Co., Ltd.
* Harbin Fumanduo PRC
Food Co., Ltd, #
* Jinan Fumanduo Food PRC
Co., Ltd.
* Dongguan Fumanduo PRC

Food Co., Ltd.

Master Kong Instant British Virgin

Foods (BV]) Co., Islands
Ltd **BVI™)

Master Kong Bakery BVI
(BVD) Co., Ltd.

Tianjin Kameda Food PRC
Co., Ltd.

Tianjin Tingyuan Food PRC
Co., Lid.

Registered

capital / issued

share capital

US$5,000,000

US$5,000,000

US$5,000,000

US$3,000,000

US$5,000,000

US$3,000,000

USE5,000,000

US$5,000,000

50,000 ordinary
shares at US$1
each/ US$1

50,000 ordinary
shares at US$1
each/ US$1

1J5$6,000,000

US$37,000,000

Proportion of ownership
interest

Directly  Indirectly

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

100% -

100% -

- 50%

- 100%

Principal activity

Manufacturing and
sale of instant
nood!les

Manufacturing and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacturing and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacturing and
sale of instan{
noodles

Manufacturing and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacturing and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacturing and
sale of instant
noodles

Manufacturing and
sale of instant
noodles

Investment holding

Investment holding

Manufacture and
sale of rice
crackers

Manufacture and
sale of bakery
products
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Name

Guangzhou Tingyuan
Food Co., Ltd.

Hangzhou Ting Yuan
Food Co., Ltd.

Master Kong Beverages
(BVI) Co., Lid

Tingyi-Asahi
Beverages Holding
Co., Ltd.

* Tianjin Tingjin Food
Co., Ltd.

Guangzhou Tingjin
Food Co., Ltd.

* Master Kong
(Guangzhow)
Beverage Co., Lid.

* Hangzhou Tingjin Food
Co., Ltd.

* Master Kong
(Hangzhou) Beverage
Co., Ltd

Xi*an Tingjin Food
Co., Ltd.

* Wuhan Tingjin Food
Co., Ltd.

Chongging Tingjin
Food Co., Ltd

Shenyang Tingjin Food
Co., Lid.

Place of
incorporation /
operation

PRC

PRC

BVI

Cayman Islands

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

Registered
capital / issued
share capital

1JS$22,000,000

US$18.400,000

50,000 ordinary
shares of US$1
each/ US$50,000

50,000 ordinary
shares of US$1
each/ US$10,001

US$60,840,000/
1S$32,340,000

US$20,000,000

US$14,500,000

US$38,100,000

US$21,350,000

US$12,000,000

US$31,000,000

US$24,000,000

US$8,500,000

Proportion of
ownership inferest

Directly

100%

100%

Indirectly

100%

50.01%

50.01%

50.01%

50.01%

50.01%

50.01%

50.01%

50.01%

50.01%

50.01%

Principal activity

Manufacture and
saie of bakery
products

Manufacture and
sale of bakery
products

Investment holding

Investment holding

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages
Manufacture and
sale of beverages
Manufacture and

sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages

Manufacture and
sale of beverages
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

40, PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of Registered capital
incorporation / / issued share Proportion of
Name operation capital ownership interest  Principal activity
Directly  Indirectly

* Qingdao Tingjin Food PRC US8$15,000,000 - 50.01% Manufacture and
Co., Ltd. sale of beverages
Fujian Tingjin Food PRC 1J8%13,700,000 - 50.01% Manufacture and
Co., Ltd. sale of beverages
* Harbin Tingjin Food PRC JS$20,000,000/ - 50.01% Manufacture and
Co., Lid. # US$13,614,836 sale of beverages
* Xinjiang Tingjin Food PRC  US$10,000,000/ - 50.01% Manufacture and
Co., Ltd. US$6,000,000 sale of beverages
* Kunming Tingjin Food PRC  US8$12,000,000/ - 50.01% Manufacture and
Co., Ltd. US$9,800,000 sale of beverages
* Zhengzhou Tingjin PRC US$24,000,000/ - 50.01% Manufacture and
Food Co., Lid US$22,800,000 sale of beverages
* Lan Zhou Tingjin Food PRC US%16,000,000/ - 50,01% Manufacture and
Co., Ltd. US$11,200,000 sale of beverages
Master Kong PRC US$15,500,000 - 50.01% Manufacture and
(Shenyang) Beverage sale of beverages
Co. Lid.
* Master Kong (Xi’an) PRC US$28,500,000 - 50.01% Manufacture and
Beverage Co., Ltd sale of beverages
* Master Kong (Tianjin) PRC US$30,500,000 - 50.01% Manufacture and
Beverage Co., Ltd sale of beverages
* Nanjing Tingjin Food PRC 1US$5,000,000 - 50.01% Manufacture and
Co., Ltd. sale of beverages
* Master Kong (Jilin) PRC US$5,000,000 - 50.01% Manufacture and
The Changbai sale of beverages
Mountain Beverage
Co., Ltd.
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSI])IARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of Registered capital

incorporation / issued share Proportion of
Name [ operation capital ownership interest  Principal activity
Directly  Indirectly
Yangzhou Tingjin PRC US85$28,500,000 - 50.01% Manufacture and
Food Co., Ltd. sale of beverages
Master Kong PRC  US$12,000,000/ - 50.01% Not yet commenced
{Hangzhou) US$1,800,029 business
Qiandachu
Beverages Co., Lid.
* Guangzhou Tingjin PRC  US$59,300,000/ - 50.01% Manufacture and
Bererage Co., Ltd. US$34,260,000 sale of beverages
* Tianjin Tingjin PRC US$12,000,000 - 50.01% Manufacture and
Beverage Co., Ltd sale of beverages
Master Kong (Dalian) PRC U8%$10,500,000 - 50.01% Manufacture and
Beverage Co., Ltd. sale of beverages
Chengdu Tingjin Food PRC 1s$12,000,000/ - 50.01% Manufacture and
Co., Ltd. US$2,646,933 sale of beverages
Master Kong PRC US$12,000,000/ - 50.01% Manufacture and
(Wulumuqi) US$2,400,000 sale of beverages
Beverage Co., Ltd. #
* Nanchang Tingjin PRC  USS$10,000,000/ - 50.01% Not yet commenced
Food Co., Ltd. US$0 business
Wei Chuan (Anji) PRC US$2,100,000 100% - Manufacture and
Daily Farm Co., sale of milk
Lid. # products
Tianjin Ting Fung PRC US$11,000,000 51% - Manufacture and
Starch Development sale of modified
Co., Ltd. potato starch and
seasoning flavours
Tingyi (BVI) Int’l Co., BVI 50,000 ordinary 100% - Purchasing and sales
Ltd. shares of US$1 agent for the
each/US$50,000 Group
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Hoelding Corp.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009 .

40, PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of Registered
incorporation/  capital / issued Proportion of
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
Directly  Indirectly

Master Kong (HK) HK HK$10,000/ 100% - Apent and trading of
Trading Comparny HK$2 products for the
Limited Group

Kinghua Dinfang PRC US$8,600,000 100% - Manufacture and
Dehydrate Foods Co., sale of dehydrated
Ltd. vegetables

Tian Jin Ting Jia PRC US$2,100,000 100% - Instailation and
Machinery Co., Ltd. maintenance of

plant and
machinery

Tianjin Tingyu Consulting PRC US$200,000 100% - Provision of
Co., Ltd. management services

Tianjin Tingguan PRC US$210,000 100% - Provision of
Properties Management property
Co., Lid. management and

related
consultancy
services

Tianjin Dingya Property PRC U8%2,100,000 100% - Property
Development Co., Ltd. development

* Guangzhou Dingya Real PRC RMB16,400,000 38% 62% Property
Estate Development development
Co., Ltd.

Tianjin Tingxin PRC US$1,700,000 100% - Provision of
International engineering related
Engineering Consultant consultancy and
Co., Ltd. research service

Tingtong (BVI} Limited BVI 50,000 ordinary 100% - Investment holding

shares of US$1
each/ US$1,000

Tingtong (Cayman Cayman Islands 15,000,000 - 50.01%  Investment holding
Islands) Holding Corp. ordinary shares

of US$1 each/
US$2,118,334
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

40, PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of Registered capital
incorporation / / issued share Proportion of
Name operation capital ownership interest  Principal activity
Directly  Indirectly

* Shanghai Tingtong PRC US$5,000,000 - 50.01% Logistics services
Logistics Co., Ltd

* Beijing Ting Tong PRC US8$500,000 - 50.01% Logistics services
Logistics Co., Ltd.

* Guangzhou Ting Tong PRC US$300,000 - 50.01% Logistics services
Logistics Co., Ltd.

Shenyang Ting Tong PRC US$300,000 - 50.01% Logistics services
Logistics Co., Ltd.

Chongqing Ting Tong PRC 1JS$300,000 - 50.01% Logistics services
Logistics Co., Ltd.

Kon Yuan Corporation # Taiwan  NT$110,000,000 100% - Tnvestment holding

Kon Chuan Corporation # Taiwan NT$96,000,000 100% - Investment holding

Kon Jun Corporation # Taiwan  NT$110,000,000 100% - Investment holding

% These subsidiaries are registered as Sino-foreign equity joint venture comparies.
#  English translation for identification purposes only.

The other subsidiarics in the PRC are established and registered as wholly-owned foreign enterprises.

Page 64 of 64



